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P&O Annual Report

Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2015

The directors present their strategic report on the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

Principal Group activities

The pancipal activity of The Peninsular and Onental Steam Nawvigation Company (*P&0") and of its subsidianes
(referred to as “the Group™) In the year was the operation and development of container terminals and related
logistical operations worldwide (“Ports™ Our aim 1s to enhance the supply chain efficiency of our customers by
effectively handling container, bulk and general cargo across our network

Review of operations and results

The results of the Group are set out in detall on pages 11 to 16 and in the accompanying notes The financial
position of the Company 1s set out in detall on page 78 and in the accompanying notes

The Group’s key financial and other performance indicators dunng the year were as follows

Included within net operating costs are the followtng items

2015 2014 % Change
Ports — Gross container throughput (TEL'000) 29,728 28,879 26
Profit from continuing operaticns before taxation (£'m) 1935 1605 2086
Profit for the year from continuing operations (E'm) 1373 989 388
EBITDA (Adjusted) (£'m)* 340 6 2880 183
Net Assets (£'m) 3,660 3 35772 23
Net debt to equity 22 9% 19 9% -
Net cash inflow from operating actvities 2154 2328 (7 5)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (544 2} {64 3) 746 3

*Earnings before separately disclosed items interast tax depreciaton and amartisation {"Adjusted EBITDA")

Gross throughput (twenty foct equivalent units (“TEU") of 29 7 millon TEUs was 2 6% more than last year mainly
due to stronger performances across Europe and Americas

Profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2015 was £193 5m up 20 6% from the prior year profit
before taxation of £160 5m Excluding the impact of any separately disclosed items, profit before taxation was
£187 7m compared to a pror year profit before taxation of £162 Om The increase in the profit before taxation
was drwven by increase In Asta Pacfic and Indian sub-continent segment primarly due to much stronger
performance of equity accounted mvestees The Austraha and Amencas segment has reported stronger
performance relative to prior perod due to acquisition of port of Pnnce Rupert Net finance costs have increased
by £9 2m primarily due to interest paid on additional drawdown duning the year, which 1s parbally offset by one off
gain on restructunng of loan in Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent segment

Profit for the year was £137 3m up by 38 8% from the prior year profit of £98 9m mainly due 1o increase n
earnings from equity accounted investees in Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent segment and increase in profit
in Europe and Afnca segment

Net assets at 31 December 2015 of £3,660 3 million were up 2 3% when compared to £3,577 2 mllion at
31 December 2014, the movements are detailed in the consoldated statement of changes in equity

Net debt to equity sncreased to 22 9% at 31 December 2015 from 19 9% at 31 December 2014 Net debt I1s
defined as all interest beanng external labilities less cash and cash equivalents

Net cash inflow from operating activites was 7 5% lower than the previous financial year principally due to
unfavourable movement in working capital, which was partly offset by increased EBITDA

Cash outflow from investing activiles was 746 3% higher than the previous financial year mamly due to
acquisition of port of Prince Rupert in August 2015 and additional capital expenditure in London Gateway port
and Nhava Sheva India Gateway Port

On 18 August 2015, the Group acqured 100% ownership of Maher Terminal's Fairview Container Terminal
(Fairview) In Prince Rupert (DP World Prince Rupert Inc ), British Columbia, Canada from Deutsche Bank for a
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)

total consideration of £288 9 million (cash acquired on acquisition £1 3 milion} This acquisition has resulted in
recogrtion of goodwill of £73 3m

On 23 September 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 17 5% additional interest in Antwerp Gateway NV for
a consideration of £19 0 million, resulting in an increase in the Group's total holding from 42 5% to 0% This has
not resulted in any change in control and it 1$ continued to be accounted as equity accounted investee

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 49% of non-controlling mterest in Southampton
Container Terminals Limited for a consideration of £38 8 mitlion, resulting i a gain of £10 5 millon which has
been recorded In equity, as there has not been any change in control

Principal risks and uncertainties

Dunng 2015, the Group continued to monitor and review the principal business performance nsks that could
matenally affect the Group's business, financial condition and reputation While other nsks exist outside those
listed, we have made a conscious effort to disclose those of greatest importance to our business The Group's
nsk management process aims to provide reasonable assurance that we understand, monitor and manage the
pnincipal uncertainties A summary of the Group's pnncipal nsks, the nature and management of these nsks are
further descnbed below

Macroeconomic instability

Contaner handiing correlates to GDP growth of the global economy Market conditions in many of the
geographies where the Group operates can be challenging due to macroeconomic issues, which can potentially
impact volume growth and profitability Measures have been taken to minimise exposures and mitigate the
impact of any downturn in the macroeconomic environment The Group has a well-diversified global portfolio of
mnvestments across a number of junsdictions, spreading concentration risk due to an even geographical spread of
business activity

Geopolitical

The Group seeks new opportunities and operates across a large number of jurisdictions, resulting in exposure to
a broad spectrum of economic, political and social frameworks Ongoing secunty assessments and continuous
monitoring of geopolitical developments aleng with engagement with local authornities and joint venture partners,
ensures that the Group 1s well posiboned to respond to changes in political environments Comprehensive
policies, procedures and trainings are in place to promote legal and regulatory comphance

Competition

The Group faces significant competition in the container terminal industry for concessions and throughput which
could adversely affect its ability to maintain or increase its market share and profitability The Group’s major and
rmiddle-tter customers are expected to continue to form alliances and change therr strategy on preferred ports and
hubs which could lead to downward pressure on tanffs and profit margins The Group focuses on high levels of
customer service and develop sustamnable, high-value and trusted customer relationships throughout its portfolio
The Group's investment in deep-sea capacity allows it to handle ultra-large vessels and offers a competitwe
advantage

The utiisation of the Group's operations 15 influenced by any available capacity to handle container volumes If
port authonties tender many projects simultaneously and create capacity beyond medium-term demand, this wll
lead to overcapacity in that market An tncrease in capacity can lead to intensified competition between port
operators, resulting in weak pncing power, loss of revenue and low return on investment In many junsdictrons
where there are ramp-up nsks associated with new capacity, the Group 1s able to seek terms with the port
authonties to restnct the granting of additional capacity until a reasonable level of ramp-up has been achieved

Legal and regulatory

Our Group 1s subject to detaled local, regional and global laws and regulations acress different junsdictions
which could impact our operations and increase the cost of compliance Failure to comply with legislation could
lead to substantial financial penalties, disruption to business, personal and corporate habilty and loss of
reputation The Group monitors changes to regulations across its portfolio to ensure that the effect of any
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Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)
changes are mimimised and compliance I1s continually managed Comprehensive policies, procedures and
training are in place to promote legal and regulatory comphance

Corporate responsibility, safety and the environment

There are Group polictes for health, safety, welfare, environment and social responsibility which are
communicated to all staff Each operating company Is required to produce its own policies and management
systems to reflect Group policies and best industry prachce n its sector of business The Company also
encourages the adoption of similar policies by its significant joint ventures and associates

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial instruments

. Liquichty rnisk
. Market nsk
. Credit nisk

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nsks, the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing nsk Futther quantitative disclosures are included
throughout the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors, in conyunction with the Board of Directors of DP World Limuted, have overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework

The Group’s nsk management policies are established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set
appropnate nisk imits and controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to hmits The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, ams to develop a disciplined and constructive contro! environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

Liguidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The
Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient cash to
meet its hiabilities when due, under both nomal and stressed conditions, without Incurnng unacceplable losses or
nsking damage to the Group’s reputation

Market nsk

Market risk 1s the nsk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect
the Group's income or the value of s holdings of financial instruments The objective of market nsk management
1s to manage and control market nsk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

The Group buys and sells denvatives and also incurs financial liabiliies in order to manage market nsks All such
transactions are carnied out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors in the Group Treasury policy
Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage the volatility in the consolidated
income statement

Currency nisk

The Group has extensive overseas and international business operations and operates in a number of foreign
currencies which gives nse to transactional and translational foreign exchange nsk The foreign currencies to
which the Group 1s most exposed are the US Dollar, the Indian Rupee, the Canadian Dollar and the Euro In
general, the Group's profits and stockholders’ funds benefit if these currencies are strong agamst Sterling

The proportion of the Group's net operating assets denominated n foreign currencies s approximately 75 7%
(2014 64 8%) with the result that the Group's consoldated statement of financial position and, in particular
owner's equity, can be affected by currency movements when it 1s retranslated at each year end rate The Group
partizlly mitigates the effect of such movements by borrowing in the same currencies as those in which the
assets are denominated and using cross currency swaps The impact of currency movements on operating profit
1s partially mitigated by inlerest costs being incurred in foreign currencies
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(continued)

Exchange movements ansing on foreign currency investments are taken directly to equity

A portion of the Group's activiies generate part of therr revenue and wncur some costs outside their main
functional currency Due to the diverse number of locations in which the Group operates there 1s some natural
hedging that occurs within the Group When it 1s considered that currency volatiity could have a matenal impact
on the results of an operation, hedging using forward foreign currency contracts is undertaken to reduce the
short-term effect of currency movements

When the Group's businesses enter into capital expenditure or lease comrmutments in currencies other than therr
main functional currency, these commutments are hedged, n most mstances, using forward contracts and
currency swaps In order to fix the cost when converted to the functional currency The Group classifies its forward
exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value

As well as the direct effect on cash flows, exchange rates also affect the Group’s businesses because of therr
overall economuc influence In particular, exchange rates affect international trade flows which impact on the
activities of the Group

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the rnisk of changes in market interest rates relates pnmarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with a fixedffioating interest rate and bank deposits

Approximately £130 7 milhion (2014 £161 2 mifion) of the Group's interest bearing loans and borrowings carry
interest at floating rates The Group’s policy 15 to manage its interest cost by entenng into interest rate swap
agreements in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon nottonal princtpal amount These swaps
are designated to hedge underlying debt obligahons

At 31 December 2015, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 88 2% (2014 82%) of
the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest

Credit nisk
Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet its contractual obliigations, which
anses pnncipally from the Group's recevables from customers and investment securities

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties It 1s the Group's policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credt venfication procedures and are required to submit financial
guarantees based on therr creditworthiness In addition, recevable balances are montored on an on-going
basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts 15 not significant

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other receivables The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to
indwvidually significant exposures and a collective loss component established for Groups of similar assets in
respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified The collective loss allowance 15 determined
based on histoncal data of payment statistics for similar financial assets

Other financial assets

Credit nsk ansing from other financial assets of the Group comprses cash and cash equivalents and certain
denvative instruments The Group's exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparly, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments

The Group imits its credit nsks with regard to bank deposits by dealing only with reputable banks with a minimum
credit rating of A-

Financial guarantees
The Group's policy 1s to consider the provision of a financial guarantee to wholly-owned subsidianes where there
Is a commercial rationale to do so Guarantees may also be provided to joint ventures and associates in very
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(continued)

Imited circumslances and always only for the Group's share of the obligation The provision of guarantees
always requires the approval of management

Capital management

The Board's policy 1s lo maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investar, creditor and market confidence
and to sustan future development of the business The Board of Directors momtors the return on capital
employed (ROCE), which the Group defines as earnings before nterast and tax and before separately disclosed
items (SDI), as a percentage of total assets less current liabilites Return on capilal employed 1s 4 1% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 as compare to 3 8% for the year ended 31 December 2014

The primary objective of the Group's capital management 1s to ensure that it maintams a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ralios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value The Board seeks to
maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of bosrowings and the
advantages and secunty afforded by a sound capital position

Neither the Company nor any of Its subsidianes are subject to externally imposed capital requirements

By order of the Board

Mohammad Al Hashimy

LA

Secretary
27 June 2016
Company Number Z73
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Report of the directors

The directors present therr report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015

Directors
The directors of the Company who held office dunng the year and to the date of this report were as follows

Sultan Bin Sulayem (appointed 26 January 2016)
Jamal Majid Bin Thamiah

Mohammed Sharaf (resigned on 26 January 2016)
Yuvra) Narayan

Ganesh Raj Jayaraman

Anil Watts

Sarmad Qureshi

Dividends

The directors approved the payment of an intenm dividend of £1,000m an 315t March 2016, the Directors did not
recommend the payment of a dividend In respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 £nil)

Employees
The Company 1s committed to keeping employees throughout the Group informed of performance, development

and progress through its established system of bnefings by management, and widely distnbuted news and
information bulletins

There 1s a European Works Council, known as the European Council, the purpose of which 1s to inform and
consult with employee representatives on transnational 1ssues Members are elected in the UK and Ireland and
either elected or appointed, in accordance with national laws, in other countnes The Council meets twice a year

The Company's aim 1s to meet the objectives of the code of good practice on the employment of disabled people
Full and fair consideration 1s given to disabled applicants for employment and training, and career development is
encouraged on the basis of aptitude and abilities it remains Company pelicy to retain employees who become
disabled whilst in its service and to provide specialised training where appropnate

Employees are able to share in the Group’s results through performance related bonus schemes which are
widely apphed in the Group

Going concern

The Group's business achvities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out In this Report In addition, note 6 to the consolidated financial statement sets out the Group’s
chjectives, policies and processes for managing the Group's financial nsk, including capital management, and
note 29 provides details of the Group's exposure to credit nisk, iquidity risk and interest rate nsk ansing from
financial instruments

The Group has within current receivables an amount of £2,602 8 milhion (2014 £2 601 1 million} due from its
intermediate parent companies and fellow subsidianes and believe these to be recoverable On this basis, the
Crrectors believe that the Group has the ability to continue trading and to meet future commitments

The board of directors remain satisfied with the Group’s funding and hquidity position At 31 December 2015, the
Group had net debt of £837 9 millon (2014 £712 0 milhon) and £244 3 million (2014 £389 6 milion) of undrawn
committed borrowing faciities The Group generated net cash of £2154 milion (2014 £232 8 milion) from
operating activities and its interest cover for the year 1s 8 times (2014 11 times) (calculated using adjusted
EBITDA to net interest expense before separately disclosed tems)

Based on the above and having made enquines, the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future and therefore they consider it
appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the accounts
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Report of the directors (continued)

Directors Indemnity insurance
All directors are entitled to indemnification from the Company 1o the extent permitted by law against claims and
legal expenses incurred In the course of their duties

Such qualifying third party indemnity insurance Is provided and remains In force as al the date of approving the
directors’ report

Disclosure of information to the auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of ihis Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware and each Director has
taken ali the steps that he or she ought lo have taken as a director to make himself or hersell aware of any
relevant audit informatton and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2008, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continue in office

By order of the Board
Mohammad Al Hashimy

LOLAMEIIN

Secretary
27June 2016
Company Number 273
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual
Report, Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report, strategic report, the directors’ report and the Group
and parent company finanaial statements, in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial
year Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Internationai
Financtal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and applicable law and have elected
to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements untess they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that
penod

In prepanng each of the Group and Parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU,

« for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the Parent Company financial
statements, and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Parent Company will confinue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Parent Company's transaction and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial positon of the
Parent Company and enable them to ensure that s financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open 1o them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularties
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Peninsular and
Oriental Steam Navigation Company

We have audited the financial statements of The Peninsular and Onental Steam Nawgation Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 set out on pages 11 to 103 The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable law and Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framewerk that has been applied in
the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008 Qur audit work has been undertaken sg that we mught state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the cpinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the directors’ Responsibilites Statement set out on page 8, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr
view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Councid's
website at www frc org ul/auditscopeukpnvate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

« the Group financial statements have been properly preparad in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU,

+ the Parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice,

= the financial statements have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opmnton the information given in the Strategic Report and the directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you f, in qur opimon:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adeguate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the Parent Company financial statements to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records
and retumns, or

s certain disclosures of direclors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our sudit

S Oubrad

Sameena Arshad {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5GL
27 June 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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£ muilion

Year ended 31 December 2015

Year ended 31 December 2014

Note Bofore Separately Total Befora Separately Total
separately disclosed separately disciosed
disctosed Items disclosed tems
Homs itams
Group revenue 7 8836 492 9328 805 8 318 8376
Cost of sales (587 6) (49 2) (636 8) (546 2) (31 8) (578 0)

Gross profit 296 0 . 2960 2596 2596
Other operating income 34 ) 34 60 ) 60
Administrative costs (148 4) (0 4) {148 8) {144 9) - (144 9)
Earnings from equity accounted 7 80 2 802 677 - 677
nvestees -

Group operating profit 2312 {04) 2308 188 4 - 188 4
Loss on sale and termination of 9 - {0 2) 02 - - -
business

Profit before finance expense 2312 {0 6) 2306 1884 - 188 4
Finance income 10 474 64 538 431 10 441
Finance expense 10 (90 9) - {90 9) (69 5) (2 5) (72 C)

Net finance expense (43 5) 64 (37 1) (26 4) (15 (27 9)

Profit before taxation 187 7 58 193 5 162 0 {15) 160 5
income tax expense 11 (56 2) {56 2) (616) (616}

Profit for the year 7 1315 58 1373 100 4 (15 989

Attributable to
Owners of the company 1181 767
Non-controlling interests 192 222
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2015

£ mellion
Note 2018 2014
Profit for the year 1373 98 9
Other comprehensive iIncome
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to consolidated income
statement
Effective portion of changes in farr value of cash flow hedges 54 {46 9)
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (6 4) 279
Share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted investees 06 (14)
Deferred tax on other comprehensive income (30) a7
ltems that will never be reclassified to consolidated income
statement
Re-measurements of post-employment benefit obligations 249 {3 8) (42 4)
Related tax (07) 19
Total other comprehensive income for the year {79) {51 2)
“Total comprehensive income for the year 1294 477
Attnibutable to
Owners of the company 113 0 281
Non-controlling interests 164 1986
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015

£ mulhion
Note 2015 2014
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 6418 267 1
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,814 9 1,737 1
Investments in equity accounted investees 14 4455 3598
Other investments 17 293 297
Trade and other recevables 16 153 179
Loans to group undertakings 16 173 224
Deferred tax assets 15 01 84
2,964 2 24424
Current assets
Inventones 171 169
Trade and other receivables 16 1810 157 9
Tax recoverable 166 14 4
Loans to group undertakings 16 2,6028 25011
Cash and cash equivalents 18 269 4 2492
3,086 9 3,0395
Total assets 56,0511 54819
Non-current habibties
Interest bearnng loans and borrowings 18 1,073 1 8609
Trade and other payables 20 736 813
Loan from group undertakings 20 2918 261
Deferred tax habiities 15 3867 3180
Employee benefits 24 1221 1352
Provisions o7 07
1,948 0 1,423 2
Current habilities
Interest beanng loans and borrowings 19 342 1003
Trade and other payables 20 2524 2360
Income tax liabities 811 ar2
Loan from group undertakings 20 518 350
Employee benefits 24 68 65
Provisions 165 165
4428 4815
Total habilities 2,390 8 1,904 7
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Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
as at 31 December 2015

£ mition

Nole 2015 2014

Net assets 3,660 3 3,677 2
Equily

Issued capltal 22 8432 8432

Shara premium 22 815.4 8154

Other reserves 22 2961 2858

Retatned earnings 1,675.5 15523

3,630 2 35067

Non-controlling interasts 21 301 705

Total equity 3,660.3 3,577 2

Total equity and Habilties 6,051.1 54819

he accounts were approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf on 27 June 2016 by

Sarmad Qureshs

Director

Tha Peninsulfar and Onental Steam Navigation Company -- Company Number £73
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P&O Annual Report

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Noto 2015 204
Operating activities
Profit after taxation 1373 98 9
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before taxation to net cash provided by operating activities
Share of profits of equity accounted investees 14 {80 2) (67 7)
Loss on sale of intangibles and property, plant and equipment 07 o1
Loss on sale and termination of business 9 02 -
Impaiment loss 9 04 -
Net finance expense 10 371 279
Taxation expense 1" 56 2 616
Depreciation and amortisation charges 1094 996
Gross cash flows from operations 2611 2204
Movement in working capital
Change in inventones 03 29
Change n trade and other recevables 5356 190
Change in trade and other payables (5 8) 652
Change in provistons (17 7) 57
income taxes paid (76 0) (63 6)
Net cash provided by operating activities . 2154 2328
Investing activities
Capital expenditure (227 8) (146 1)
Investment in equity accounted investees (18 0} (11
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 109 07
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 14 239 815
Net loans given to joint ventures and asscciates (17 1) -
Interest receved 112 86
Acquisition of non-controling interest without change of control (38 7) -
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 28 (287 6) {79
Net cash used in investing activities (544 2) (64 3)
Financing activities
Drawdown from long-term financing 1738 1578
Repayments of long-term financing (36 5) (70 7)
Net decrease/ (increase) in loan with group undertakings 2859 (110 3)
Net interest paid (55 9) (46 4)
Dnidends paid to Non-controlling interest (7 6) (156}
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities 3597 (85 2)
Increase In cash and cash equivalents 309 833
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13 2432 1655
Currency translation differences relating to cash and cash equivalents {107) 04
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 269 4 2492
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Reporting entity

The Peninsular and Onental Steam Navigation Company (the “Company”) I1s a company incorporated and domiciled
in the United Kingdom The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015
compnse the Company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the “Group” and indnadually referred to as “Group
entities”) and the Group’s interests in associates and jointly controfled entities The parent company financial
statements present information about the company as a separate entity and not as a Group

2 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of complhiance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (“IFRS" The Company has elected to prepare s parent company financial
statements in accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 78 to 103

The consclidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 27 June 2016
(b} Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except for denvative
financial instruments which are measured at fair value

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in note 5
(c) Funding and hiquidity

The Group's business actwvities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in this Report In addition, note 6 to the consohdated financial statement sets out the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing the Group’s financial risk, including capital management, and
note 29 provides detaills of the Group’s exposure to credit nsk, hquidity nsk and interest rate nsk ansing from
financial instruments

The Group has within current recevables an amount of £2,602 8 milien {2014 £2,601 1 mullion) due from its
intermediate parent companies and fellow subsidianes and beleve these to be recoverable On this basis, the
Directors believe that the Group has the ability to continue trading and to meet future commitments

The Board of Directors remain satisfied with the Group's funding and hquidity position At 31 December 2015, the
Group had net debt of £837 9 million (2014 £712 0 million) and £244 3 miflion (2014 £389 6 million) of undrawn
commutted borrowing faciliies The Group’s credit faciity covenants are currently well within the covenant imits
The Group generated net cash of £215 4 million (2014 £232 8 million) from operating activities and its interest
cover for the year i1s 8 times (2014 11 times) (calculated using adjusted EBITDA to net interest expense before
separately disclosed items)

Based on the above and having made enquines, the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue m operational existence for the foreseeable future and therefore they consider it
appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the accounts

{d) Functional and presentation currency

The functonal currency of the Company Is stering Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and tems included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling (“£7), which in the opinion of management 1s the
most appropnate presentation currency of the company in view of the global presence of the Group All financial
information presented in £ are rounded to the nearest 0 1 million
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation {continued)

(e) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires
management to make judgements, estmates and assumptions that affect the applicaton of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, habiihes, income and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis Rewistons o accounting estimates are
recogrised in the penod in which the eshmate 1s revised and in any future penods affected

Information about cntical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are as follows

(1} Provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets

The Group 1s subject to iIncome taxes in numerous junsdichons  Significant judgement 1s required in determining the
worldwide prowision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination 1s uncertain during the ordinary course of business The Group recogmises habilities for anticipated tax
claims based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters i1s
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provistons in the penod in which such determination 1s made

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be
avallable aganst which the losses can be utilsed Significant management judgement 1s required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies

(n) Fair value of denivatives and financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial labiites recorded in the consoldated statement of financial ’

position cannct be denved from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow medel The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this 1s not feasible, a degree of judgement 1s required 1n establishing farr values The judgements include
consideration of inputs such as market nsk, credit nsk and volatility

(1) Contingent lhabilities
There are vanous factors that could result in a contingent hability being disclosed f the probability of any outflow In

settlement 1s not remote The assessment of the outcome and financial effect 15 based upon management's best
knowledge and judgement of current facts as at the reporting date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(e) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

{v) Useful iife of property, plant and equipment and port concession nghts with finite life

The useful Iife of property, plant and equipment and port concession fnights with finite life 15 determined by the
Group’s management based on their estmate of the penod over which an asset or port concession right 1s
expected to be availlable for use by the Group This estimate 1s reviewed and adjusted If appropriate at each
financial year end This may result in a change n the useful economic lives and therefore depreciation and
amortisation expense n future perods

v) impairment testing of goodwill and port concession nghts

The Group determines whether goodwill and port concession nghts with indefinite life are impaired, at least on an
annual basis This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill s
allocated or in which the port concession nights with indefinite Iife exist Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows

{vi) Impairment of accounts recewvable

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts recevable 1s made when collection of the full amount 1s no longer
probable For significant amounts, this estimation 1s performed on an indvidual basis Amounts which are not
ndividually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the
length of tme past due, based on histoncal recovery rates Any difference between the amounts actually collected in
future penods and the amounts expected, will be recognised in the consolidated income statement

(vir) Pension and post-employment benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits 15 determined using actuanal
valuations The actuanal valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on
assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases Due to the long-term nature of these
plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty

(v Business combinations

In accounting for business combinations, judgement i1s required in identifying whether an identfiable intangible
asset 1s to be recorded separately from goodwill Additionally, estimating the acquisition date fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed involves management judgment These measurements are
based on information available at the acquisition date and are based on expectations and assumptions that have
been deemed reasonable by the management Changes in these judgemenis, estimates and assumptions can
matenally affect the resulis of operations

{1x) Non-consolidation of entities in which the Group holds more than 50% shareholding

Antwerp Gateway N V and Asian Terminals Inc are equity accounted investees of the Group even though the
Group has majonty in ownership and voting nghts The Directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has the ability to direct the relevant activiies of this entty unifaterally After assessment, the Directors
concluded that the underying joint venture agreement with the other shareholder does not provide significant
control to the Group and therefore investment in these entities are equity accounted and not consolidated
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

3 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out In Note 4 to all penods presented in these
consolidated financial statements

4 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in the year presented in these consolidated
financial statements and have been applied consistently by the Group entities

(a) Basis of consolidation
()] Business combinations

Business combinations (including business combinations under common control) are accounted for using the
acquisiion method as at the acquisition date — 1 e when control 1s transferred to the Group In assessing coniral,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting nights that are currently exercisable

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as

the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
the recognised amount of any non-controliing interests in the acquiree, plus
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the far value of the pre-existing equity interest in the
acquiree, less

. the net recognised amount (generally far value) of the identifiable assets (including previously
unrecognised port concession nghts) acquired and labilities (including contingent hiabilities and excluding
future restructuring) assumed

In an acquisition, if the purchase pnce I1s lower than the farr value of the assets acquired, the resulting gain will be
recognised immediately in the statement of consolidated statement of profit or loss

In case of business combinations under common control, if the purchase price 1s {ower than the fair value of the
assets acquired, the resulting gain will be recognised directly in equity

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration payable 1s measured at farr value at the acqussitton date f the contingent
consideration 1s classified as equity, then it ss not re-measured and settlement 1s accounted for within equity
Otherwise, subsequent changes In the farr value of the contingent consideration are recogmsed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss

(i) Subsidianes

Subsidianes are entilies controlled by the Group The Group controls an enhity when it 1s exposed to, or has nghts
to, vanable returns from its involvemnent with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity The financral statements of substdianes are included in the consolidated financial statements from

the date that control commences until the date that control ceases The accounting policies of subsidianes have
been changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group

{1} Change in ownership interests in subsidianes without loss of control

Changes In the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill 1s recognised as a result of such
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(1) Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries without loss of control (continued)

transactions The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and relevant share acquired in the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary 1s recorded in equity under retained earnings

iv) Disposal of subsidiaries (loss of control)

On the loss of control, the Group derecogmises the assets and habiihes of a subsidiary, any non-controlling
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary Any surplus or defict ansing on the loss of
control 1s recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss If the Group retains any interest in the previous
subsidiary, then such interest 1s re-measured at farr value at the date that control 1s lost Subsequently, that
retained Interest 1s accounted for as an equiy-accounted investee or as an avalable-for-sale financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained

v Non-controlling interests

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controling interests at their proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, which i1s generally at far value

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling nterests even
if doing so, causes the non-controlling interests to have a debit balance

{vi) Investments in associates and joint ventures (equity-accounted investees)

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group has significant mfluence Significant influence s the power to
participate n the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but 1s not control or joint control over
those policies

A joint venture 1s a type of joint amangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
nghts to the net assets of the joint venture Jont control I1s the contractually agreed shanng of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant actwities require the unamimous consent of the
parties shanng control

Investment in equity-accounted investees are accounted for using the equity method and are inthally recorded at
cost including transaction costs The Group's investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, fair value
adjustments net of any accumulated impairment losses The consolidated financial statements include the Group's
share of the Income and expenses of equity-accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies
with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that
significant influence or joint control ceases

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of that
interest (including any long-term investments) 1s reduced to ril and the recognition of further losses 18 discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee If the equity-
accounted nvestees subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised

The financial statements of the equity-accounted investees are prepared for the same reporting penod as the
Group The transactions between the Group and its eguity-accounted investees are made at normal market pnees

At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there I1s any objective evidence that the investment in the
equity-accounted investees are impaired If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the equity-accounled investees and s camying value and
recognises the same in the consolidated income statement

Upon loss of jant control or significant influence, the Group measures and recogrises any retained investment at
its far value The difference between the carrying amount of the equity—accounted investees upon loss of joint
control or sigrificant influence and the farr value of the retaned investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised as profit or loss in the consolidated income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting polictes (continued)

(vir) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses ansing from mtra-group
transactions, are elminated in prepanng the consolidated financial statements Unrealised gains ansing from the
transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the mvestment to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee Unrealised losses are elminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there 1s no evidence of impairment

(b) Foreign currency

()] Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in £, which 1s the Group's presentation currency ltems
included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
pnmary environment in which it operates (functional currency)

(n) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entitres at
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions

Monetary ttems denominated in foreign currencies at the reporing date are retranslated 1o the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date and exchange differences, If any, are recogrised in the income
statement

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to the functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of mbal transaction and i1s not retranslated at a later date Non-
menetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined

Foreign currency differences ansing on retranslation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for differences ansing on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity
instruments, of a financial lability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation, or
qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognised directly in consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income (refer to note 4(b)(v))

(it} Foreign operations

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy), that have functiona! currency different from the presentaton currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows

(a) The assets and habilites of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjusiments ansing on
acquisition, are translated to Sterling at exchange rates at the reporting date
(b) The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Stering at average exchange rates

{untess this average ts not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions)

(c) All resuling foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are recognised in the other
comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve n equity However, if the foreign
operation 1s not a wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportion of the translation difference 1s
allocated to non-controlling interests
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(in) Foreign operations (continued)

When a foreign operation 1s disposed such that contro!, significant influence or joint control 1s lost, the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation 1s reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retamning control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount
15 reattnbuted to non- controlling interests When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate
or jont venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proporiion of the cumulative amount I1s reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing from a monetary item recewvable from or payable to a foreign operation,
the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely i the foreseeable future, are considered to form part of a net
investment in a foreign operation and are recogmsed in other comprehensive ncome and presented in the
franslation reserve in equity

(iv) Hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation

Foresgn currency differences ansing on the retranslation of a financial habilty designated as a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised in the consohidated statement of other comprehensive income, to
the extent that the hedge I1s effective To the extent that the hedge Is effective, such differences are recogrised in
the consclidated statement of profit or loss When the hedged net investment 1s disposed of, the associated
cumulative amount In consolidated statement of other comprehensive Income s transferred to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of the gan or loss on disposal

(c) Financial instruments
()] Non-derivative financial assels

Initial recogmtion and measurement

The Group classifies non-denvative financial assets into the following categories held to matunty financial assets,
loans and recevables and financial assets at farr value through profit or loss The Group determines the
classificatton of its financial assets at inihial recognition

Al non-denvative financial assets are recognised intially at fair value, plus, any directly attnbutable transaction
costs

The Group nmially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they onginated All other
financial assets (Including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade
date, which 1s the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

The Group's non-denvative financial assets compnse debt secunties held to matunty, financial assets at far value
through profit and loss, trade and other recevables, due from related parties and cash and cash equivalents
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{c) Financial instruments {continued)
] Non-denvative financial assets {continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of non-denvative financial assets depends on their classification as follows
Held to matunty financial assets

If the Group has a positive intent and ability to hold debt secunties to maturty, then these are classified as held-to-
matunty Subsequent to inhal recognition, held-to-matunty financial assets are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any imparrment losses Amortised cost 1s calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate The
effective interest rate amorhsation 1s included in finance cost in the consolidated income statement Gains and
losses are also recognised in the consolidated income statement when these financial assets are de-recognised

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market Subsequent to mitial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less any impairment losses Loans and receivables compnse bank balances and cash, due
from related parties and, trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash n the consolidated statement of financial position compnse cash in hand, bank balances
and deposits

For the purpose of consoldated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and
cash as defined above and cash classified as held for sale, net of bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts form an integral
part of the Group's cash management and 1s included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset 1s classified as at farr value through profit or loss if t 1s classified as held for trading or I1s
designated as such on inthal recogniion These assets are measured at fair value and changes therein, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss Financial assets at far
value through profit and loss compnse investment in an equity instrument of unhsted entrty

Investment in equity instrument that de not have a quoted market pnce in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost

De-recognition of non-denvative financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the nghts fo recewve the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred Any interest in transferred
financial assets that 1s created or retained by the Group 1s recognised as a separate asset or hability

1) Non -denvative financial habilities

Imtial recogrition and measurement

The Group's non-denvative financial labiibies consist of loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, amounts due to
related parties, and trade and other payables The Group determines the classification of its financial hiabilities at

inital recogrution  All non-denvative financial habiliies are recognised iniially at fair value less any directly
attnbutable transaction costs
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(¢) Financial instruments {continued)
(i) Non -denvative financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recogmition and measurement (continued)

The Group iniially recognises debt secunties 1ssued and subordinated liabilities on the date they onginated All
aother financial habilities (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised intially
on the trade date, which 1s the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions cf the
instrument

Fees pad on the establishment of loan faciliies are recognised as transaction costs to the extent there 1s
evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down, the fee 1s capitalised as a
prepayment for hquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates

Subsequent measurement
“The subsequent measurement of non-denvative financial labiliies depends on their classification as follows

Subsequent to imihal recognition, these financial habilites are measured at amortised cost using effective
interest rate method Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or cosis that are an integral part of the effective interest rate The effective interest rate amortisation 1s
inctuded in finance costs In the consolidated iIncome statement

A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial hability or a part of it shail be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the oniginal financial hability and the recognition of a new financial hability Any gain or loss on
extinguishment 13 recogrised In the consolidated ncome statement [f discounted present value of the cash
flows (including any fees paid) under a new term arrangement Is at least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the onginal hiability, this 15 accounted for as an extinguishment of
the old lhability and the recogniion of a new habiity Furthermore, qualtative assessment to assess
extinguishment 1s also performed Some of the factors considered in performing a qualitative assessment
include change in interest basis, extension of debt tenure, change in collateral arrangements and change In
currency of lending

De-recognition of non-denvative financial habilities
The Group derecognises a financial habilty when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired
(1) Dervative financial instruments

The Group holds denvative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to
hedge 1its foreign currency and interest rate nsk exposures On imitial designation of the denvatives as the hedging
instrument, the Group formally documents the retationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item,
including the nsk management objective and strategy in undertaking the hedge transacton and hedged nsk
together with the methods that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship The Group
makes an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, of whether
the hedging instruments are expected to be “highly effective” in offsetting the changes in the far value or cash
flows of the respectve hedged items attnbutable to the hedged nsk and whether the actual results of each hedge
are within the acceptable range

Denvatives are recognised mmally at far value and attnbutable transaction costs are recogmised in the
consolidated income statement when incurred Dernvatives are carned as financial assets when the far value 1s
positive and as financial habilihes when the farr value 1s negative

Denvative instruments that are not designated as hedging msitruments In hedge relationships are classified as
financial labilites or assets at far value through profit or loss
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{c) Financial instruments {continued)
(i) Derivative financial instruments {continued)

Subsequent to inthal recognition, denvatives are measured at farr value, and changes therein are accounted for as
descnbed below

Cash flow hedges

When a denvative 15 designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the varability in cash flows attnbutable to
a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highty probable forecast transaction or the
foreign cumrency nsk in an unrecogmised firn commitment that could affect the consolidated income statement,
then such hedges are classified as cash flow hedges

Changes in the farr value of the denvative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised
directly in consolidated statement of other comprehensive iIncome to the extent that the hedge 1s effective and
presented in the hedging reserve in equity Any ineffective portion of changes in the far value of the denvative s
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement

When the hedged item I1s a non-financial asset, the amount recognised in the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income I1s transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it 1s recognised In other cases, the
amount recogrised in consolidated statement of other comprehensive Income s transferred to the consolidated
income statement in the same penod that the hedged item affects the consolidated income statement ¥ the
hedging instrument no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, expires or 1s sold, teminated or exercised,
or the designation 1s revoked, then hedge accounting 15 discontinued prospectively The cumulative gain or loss
previously recogrised in consolidated statement of other comprehensive iIncome remains there until the forecast
transaction or firm commitment occurs If the forecast transaction or firm commitrment 1s no longer expected to
occur, then the balance in equity 1s reclassified to income statement

(iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial postion when, and only when, the Group has a tegal nght to offset the amounts and intends erther to
set off on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the Lability simultaneously

(d) Property, plant and equipment

(1) Recogmition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and imparment
losses (refer to note 4())

Cost includes expenditure that 15 directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset The cost of a self-
constructed asset includes the cost of matenals and direct labour, any other costs direclly attributable to
bninging the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantiing and removing the items
and restonng the site on which they are located
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d} Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(1) Recogmition and measurement (continued)

Purchased software that 1s integral to the functionality of the related equipment 1s caprtalised as part of that
equipment

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful hves, they are depreciated as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by companng the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and recogrused within ‘other
income’ in the consolidated income statement

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress I1s measured at cost less impaiment losses and not depreciated until such time the
assets are ready for intended use and transferred to the respective calegory under property, plant and
equipment

Dredging

Dredging expendiure I1s categonsed into capital dredging and major maintenance dredging Capital dredging i1s
expenditure which includes creation of a new harbour, deepening or extension of the channel berths or
waterways in order to allow access to larger ships which will result in future economic benefits for the Group
This expenditure 1s capitalised and amortised over the expected period of the relevant concession agreement
Terminals, where the Group owns the land, dredging expenditure 15 capialised and armortised over its useful
life

Major maintenance dredging 18 expenditure incurred to restore the channel to its previcus condition and depth

On an average, the Group Incurs such expenditure every 10 years At the completion of maintenance dredging,
the channel has an average service potential of 10 years Any unamortised expense 1S wntten-off on the
commencement of any new dredging activites Maintenance dredging 1s regarded as a separate component of
the asset and 1s capitalised and amortised evenly over 10 years

() Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recagmised In the carrying amount of
the item if it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measured rellably The carrying amounts of the replaced parts are derecognised The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised In the consolidated income statement as
ncurred

{m) Depreciation

Land and capital work in progress 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-ine basis over the estmated useful lives of each part of an ttem of
property, plant and equipment and 1s based on cost less residual value

The estmated useful lives of assets are as follows

Assets Useful life (years)
Bulldings 5-50
Plant and eguipment 3-25
Ships 10-35
Dredging (included in land and buildings) 10-99
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iin) Depreciation (continued)

Dredging costs are depreciated on a straight ine basis based on the lives of vanous components of dredging

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless 1t 1s reasonably
certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term No depreciation 1s provided on
freehold land

Depreciation metheds, useful hives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectvely, if required

An asset's carrying amount 1s wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
Is greater than rts estimated recoverable amount (refer to note 4 (i) (1))

{iv) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarly take a substantial penod of time o get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets, untl such time a3 the assets are substantially ready for therr intended use or sale
Borrowing costs may include

(a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as descnbed in IAS 39,
(b) finance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with 1As 17, and

{c) exchange differences ansing from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs

All other borrowing costs are recogmised in profit or less in the peniod in which they are incurred

{e}) Goodwill

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures Goodwill represents the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the nat fair value of the identifiable assets, habilihies and
contingent habilites of the acquiree In an acquisition, If the purchase price 1s lower than the fair value of the
assets acquired, the resultng gain will be recognised immediately in the statement of consolidated income
statement

Goodwill 1s measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses {refer to note 4(1))

In respect of equity-accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill 1s inclueded n the carrying amount of
the investment and 1s not tested for impairment separately

f) Port concession nghts

The Group classifies the port concession nghts as intangible assets as the Group bears demand nsk over the
infrastructure assets Substantally all of the Group’s terminal operatians are conducted pursuant to long-term
operating concessions or leases entered into with the owner of a relevant port for terms generally between 25 and
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4 Significant accounting policies (contnued)

50 years (excluding the port concession nghts relating to associates and jont ventures) The Group commonly
starts negotiations regarding renewal of concession agreements with approximately 5-10 years remaining on the
term and often obtains renewals or extensions on the concession agreements in advance of their expiration in
return for a commitment to make certain capital expenditures in respect of the subject terminal tn addition, such
negotiations may result in the re-basing of rental charges to reflect prevaiing market rates However, based on the
Group’s expenence, Incumbent operators are typically granted renewal often because 1t can be costly for a port
owner to switch operators, both administratively and due to interruptions to port operations and reduced
productivity associated with such transactions Port concession nghts consist of

(1) Port concession rights ansing on business combinations

The cost of port concession rights acquired in a business combination 1s the far value as at the date of
acquisition Other port concession nghts acquired separately are measured on 1mtial recognition at cost

Following imibal recognition, port concession nights are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (refer to note 4(1)) Internally generated port concession nights, excluding
capitaised development costs, are recognised In the consolidated income statement as incurred The useful
lives of port concession rights are assessed to be either finite or indefinte

Port concession nights with finite ives are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there s an indication that the port concession nghts may be impaired Port
concession nghts with indefinite lives (ansing where freehold nghts are granted) are not amortised and are
tested for impawment at least on an annual basis

The amortisation period and amortisation method for port concession nghts with finite useful lives are reviewed
at least at each financial year end Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are accounted for by changing the amortisation penod or
method, as appropnate, and freated as changes in accounting estmates The amortisation expenses on port
concession nights with finite useful lives are recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight line
basis In the expense category consistent with the function of port concession nghts

Port concession nghts with indefinite useful lives are tested for imparment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level Such port concession nghts are not amortised The useful life of port concession
nghts with an ndefinite Iife 1s reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite ife assessment continues to
be supportabte If not, the change in the useful Iife assessment from indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective
basis

{n) Port concession rights arising from Service Concession Arrangements (IFRIC 12)

The Group recognises port concession nghts ansing from a service concession arrangement, in which the
grantor controls or regulates the services provided and the prices charged, and also controls any significant
residual interest In the infrastructure such as property, plant and equipment, If the infrastructure 1s existing
infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure 1s constructed or purchased by the Group as part of the service
concession arrangement

Port concession nghts also include certain property, plant and equipment which are reclassified as intangible
assets i accordance with IFRIC 12 'Service Concession Arrangements’ These assets are amortised based on
the lower of therr useful lives or concession penod

Gains or losses ansing from de-recognition of port concession nghts are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recogmsed n the consolidated income
statement when the asset 1s de-recognised

The estimated useful lives for port concession nghts range within a perod of 5 — 50 years {(including the
concession rghts relating to associates and joint ventures)
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{g) Inventories

Inventones mainly consist of spare parts and consumables Inventonies are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value The cost of inventones ts based on weighted average method and includes expenditure
incurred N acquinng nventones and bnnging them to their existing location and condition Net realisable value
1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable vanable selling expenses

{h) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 1s, or contains, a lease 1S based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date The arrangement 1s assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement 1s
dependent on the use of a speaific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset or assets,
even If that nght s not explicitly specified in an arangement

(i) Group as a lessee

Assets held by the Group under leases in which a significant partion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases Assets held under operating leases are not recognised
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position Payments made under operating leases are
recogmised in the consolidated income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease

The Group leases certan property, plant and equipment Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease On ntal
recognition, the leased assets are measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value
of the minimum lease payments Subsequent to inthal recogniion, the leased asset 1s accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are
apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding lability The finance expense I1s
allocated to each perned dunng the lease term so as to produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability

Contingent payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remairing term of the
lease when the lease adjustment 1s confirmed

{1} Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantally all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases Initial direct costs incurred in negohiating an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental Income Contingent
rents are recognised as income n the penod in which they are eamed

(i} Leasing and sub-leasing transactions

A senes of leasing and sub-leasing transactions between the Group and third parties which are closely
interretated, negotiated as a single transaction, and which take place concurrently or In a continuous sequence
are considered inked and accounted for as one transaction when the overall economic effect cannot be
understood without reference to the senes of transactions as a whole

These leasing and sub-leasing transactions are designed to achieve certain benefits for the third parties in
overseas locations in return for a cash benefit to the Group Such cash benefit 1s accounted in the consohdated
income statement based on its economic substance Under these leasing and sub-leasing transactions, current
and non-current habilittes have been decreased by the loan receivable and the placement of deposits
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(h) Leases (continued)
(iv) Leases of land in port concession

Leases of land have not been classified as finance leases as the Group believes that the substantial nsks and
rewards of ownership of the tand have not been transferred The existence of a significant exposure of the lessor to
performance of the asset through contingent rentals was a basis of concluding that substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership have not passed

(1) tmpairment
(i) Financial assets
(a) Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments

The Group considers evidence of imparment for loans and receivables and held to matunty investment
secunties at both a specific asset level and collective level All indvidually significant recevables and held to
matunty investment secunites are assessed for specific impairment

An impairment loss i respect of a financial asset measured at amorised cost 1s calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the onginal
effective interest rate Impaimment losses are recognised In the consolidated income statement and reflected In
an allowance account against loans and receivables or held to maturty investments When a subsequent event
causes the amount of mpaiment loss to decrease, the decrease in imparment loss 1s reversed through the
consohdated income statement

(#) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventones and deferred tax assets are
reviewed for impairrment whenever there 1s an indication of impairment If any such indication exists then the
asset’s recoverable amount 1s estmated The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 1s the
greater of its value in use and its farr value less costs to sell In assessing value In use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset or cash generating urit A cash-
generating unit 15 the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent
from other assets and groups
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4 Significant accounting polictes (continued)
()] Impairment (continued)
(¥ Non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss 1s recogmsed If the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating urut exceeds s
estimated recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated income statement
Impairment fosses recogmised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the camying amount of the other assets in the
unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis

For goodwill and port concession nghts that have indefimte lives or that are not yet avalable for use,
recoverable amount 15 estimated annually and when crcumstances indicate that camying value may be
impared Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated to groups of cash generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 15 not
reversed

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists An impairment loss 1s reversed If there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount An impaiment loss I1s reversed only to the
extent that the assetfs camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount, which would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised

) Assets held for sale

Assets (or disposal groups compnsing assets and labilihes) which are expected to be recovered pnmanly
through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale Immediately before classification
as held for sale, the assets {or components of a disposal group) are re-measured In accordance with the
Group's accounting policies Thereafter, generally the assets (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of
therr carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell Any impairment loss on a disposal group 1s first allocated to
goodwill, and then to remaining assets and habilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss 1s allocated to
inventones, financial assets, deferred tax assets and employee benefit assets which continue to be measured In
accordance with the Group's accounting policies Impatrment losses an inhial classification as held for sale and
subsequent gamns or losses on re-measurement are recognised in the consolidated income statement Gains
are not recognised in excess of any cumulative imparrment loss

Port concession nghts and property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale or distnbution are not
amortised or depreciated [n addition, equity accounting of equity-accounted investees ceases once classified
as held for sale

(k) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly atinbutable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity Any excess payment received over par value s treated as share premium
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4 Significant accounting policies {(continued)
{1) Employee benefits
{1) Pension and post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan in which the company pays the fixed contnbution
to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obligations for
contnbutions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement during which
the services are rendered by employees

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contnbution plan

The Group’s net abligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
pnor pencds That benefit ts discounted to determine the present value, and the farr value of any plan assets 1s
deducted The calculation 1s performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected umit credit method
The discount rate 1s the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds that have matunty dates
approximating to the terms of the Group's obligations

When the actuanal calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset 1s imited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductons in future
contrbutions to the plan In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration i1s given to
any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Group An economic benefit 1s available to the
Group if it 15 realisable during the life of the plan, or on setilement of the plan habiliies

Where the present value of the deficit contributions exceeds the |AS 19 deficit an addiional hability 1s
recognised

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit hability, which compnse of actuanal gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised
directly in consolidated statement of other comprehensive ncome The Group determines the net interest
expense (Income) on the net defined benefit hability (asset) for the penod by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual pencd to the then-net defined benefit
hability (asset), taking into account any changes In the net defined benefit hability (asset) dunng the period as
result of contributions and benefit payments Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised n profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 1s curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtatment 1s recogmised immediately in profit or loss The Group
recognise gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs
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() Employee benefits {continued)
() Long-term service benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits, other than pension plans, 1s the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and pnor penods The
obligation 1s calculated using the projected unit credit method and 1s discounted to its present value and the fair
value of any related assets 1s deducted The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated
bonds that have matunty dates approximating to the terms of the Group's obligations

(i) Short-term service benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service 1s provided A hability 1s recogrused for the
amount expected to be paid of the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

(m) Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuning costs and legal claims are recognised when the group
has a present legal or consiructive obligation as a result of past events, it 1s probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses

Prowvistons are measured at the present value of the expenditures expecled to be required to settle the
obligatton using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nsks
specific to the liabiity The unwinding of the discount I1s recognised as a finance cost in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Provision for an cnerous contract 1s recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Group from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract The prowision Is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net
cost of continuing with the contract

(n) Revenue

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic henefits will fiow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment 1s being made Revenue 1s measured at the
fair value of the consideration recewved or receivable, taking into account contraciually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duty

Revenue manly consists of contanenzed stevedonng, other contamnenzed revenue, non- containenzed
revenue, service concession revenue and lease rentals Non-containenzed revenue mainly ncludes logistics
and handling of break bulk cargo The following specific recognition cnterta must also be met before revenue 1s
recogmised

Rendering of services

Revenue from providing containenzed stevedonng, other containenzed services and non-containenzed services
1s recogrused on the delivery and completion of those services
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4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
(n) Revenue {(continued)
Service concession arrangements (IFRIC 12)

Revenues relating to construction contracts which are entered into with government authonties for the
construction of the infrastructure necessary for the provision of services are measured at the far value of the
consideration received or receivable Revenue from service concession arrangements 1S recognised based on
the fair value of construction work performed at the reporting date

(o) Finance income and expense

Finance income compnses Interest ncome on funds invested and gains on hedging instruments that are
recognised In the consclidated income statement Interest income s recognised as It accrues, using the
effective interest method

Finance costs comprises interest expense on borrowings, unwinding af the discount on provisions, impairment
losses recognised on financial assets and losses on hedging mstruments that are recogmsed in the
consohdated income statement

Finance income and expense also include realised and unrealised exchange gains and losses on monetary
assets and habilities (refer to note 4(b)())

(p) Income tax

Income tax expense compnses current and deferred lax Income tax expense ts recognised in the consohdated
income statement except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly In
consoldated statement of other comprehensive income

Current tax s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countrnies where the Group operates and generates taxable
income It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Current tax assets and liabiities are offset only if certain critena are met

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed using the liabiity method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financsal reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes
Deferred tax 1s not recognised for

. the temporary differences ansing on the inbal recognition of goodwill and the inibal recognition of
assets or habilites 1n a transaction that 1s not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting hor taxable profit or loss, and

. the temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jontly controlled entities to the
exient that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporing penod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabihities

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be utiised
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporiing date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset only if certain cntena are met
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4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{q) Segment reporting

An operating segment 1s a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam
revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group's other components All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s
Board of Directors to assess performance

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly attnbutable 1o a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assets
{(pnmanly Company's head office), head office expenses and income tax assets and liabililies

Segment capital expenditure 1s the total cost incurred duning the year to acquire property, plant and equipment,
and port concession rights other than goodwill

{n Separately disclosed items

The Group presents, as separately disclosed items on the face of the consolidated income statement, those
items of income and expense which, because of the nature and expected infrequency of the events giving nise to
them, ment separate presentation to allow users to understand better the elements of financial performance in
the penod, so as to faciitate a companson with pnor penods and a better assessment of trends In financiat
performance These are matenal amounts and as such warrant separate disclosure, without which information of
the underlying operaticns of the group would not be clear
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4

(s)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

New standard and interpretation not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not effective for annual periods
beginning 1 January 2015, and have not been applied in prepanng these consolidated financial statements
Those which may be relevant to the Group are set out below The Group does not plan to adopt these
standards early

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010), IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2009)

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and
general hedge accounting requirements

IFRS 9 15 effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted
The adoption of this standard 1s not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehenswve framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue Is
recognised It replaces existng revenue recogniion guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and IFRIC 43 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The standard i1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier application 1s
perritted The adoption of this standard 1s not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements

{FRS 16 Leases

1ASB has introduced a new leases Standard, IFRS 18, which supersedes |IAS 17 leases The Group is
required to apply IFRS 16 with effect from 1 January 2019

The new standard requires the lessee to recognise the operating lease commitment on balance sheet The
Group, as a lessee, has substantial operating leases and commitments as disclosed in Note 32 The
standard would require future lease commitments to be recognised as a hability, with a corresponding nght
of use asset This will impact the EBITDA and debt to equity ralios of the Group [n addition, depending on
the stage of lease, there would be a different pattem of expense recognition on leases Currently lease
expenses are recogmsed 1n cost of sales, however in fulure the lease expense would be an amortisation
and finance expense
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5 Determination of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and habilites Far values have been determined for measurement and/ or
discfosure purposes based on the following methods When applicable, further information about the
assumptions made 1n determining fair values i1s disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or hability

(i} Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination 1s based on
market values The market value of property Is the estmated amount for which a property could be exchanged
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm's length transacton after proper
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion The market
value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings 1s based on the quoted market pnces for similar items

(1) Port concesston rights

Port concession nghts acquired in a business combination are accounted at therr farr values The far value 1s
based on the discounted cash flows expected to be denved from the use and eventual sale of ihe assets

(ti1) Investments in debt securities
The far values of equity and debt secunties are determined by reference to ther quoted closing bid price at the
reporting date The farr value of debt secunties held to matunty 1s determined based on the discounted cash flows

at a market related discount rate The far value of debt secunties held to matunty i1s determined for disclosure
purposes only

(iv) Trade and other receivables/ payables

The fair value of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximates to the carrying values due
to the short term matunty of these instruments

{v) Derivatives

The farr value of forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps I1s based on the bank quotes at the
reporting dates Similar contracts are traded in an active market and the quotes reflect the actual transactions in
similar instruments

{vi) Non-denvative financ:al habilities

Fair value for quoted bonds 15 based on therr market pnce (including unpaid interest) as at the reporting date
Other loans include term loans and finance leases These are largely at vanable interest rates and therefore, the
carrying value normally equates to the fair value

The far value of bank balances and cash and bank overdrafts approximates to the carrying value due to the short
term matunty of these instruments
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6 Financial nsk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial nstruments

(a) credit nsk
(b) liquidity nsk
{c) market nsk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above rsks, the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing rsk Further quanttative disclosures are included
throughout these consolidated financial statements Also refer to note 29 for further details

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors, in conjunction with the Board of Directors of DP World Limited, have overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework

The Group's nsk management policies are established to dentify and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, 10
set approprate nsk mits and controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence to hmits The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, ams to develop a disciphined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obhgations

39




P&O0 Annual Report

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Financial nsk management (continued)

Risk management framework {continued)

{a) Credit nsk

Credn nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
anses pnncipally from the Group's recewvables from customers, amounts due from related parties and
investment secunties

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades mainly with recogrised and creditworthy third parties It 1s the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade oncredit terms are subject to credt verfication procedures and are required to
submit financial guarantees based on their creditworthiness In addition, recewable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts 1s not significant

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other recevables The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates
to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component estabhshed for groups of similar assets in
respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified The collective loss allowance 1s determined
based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets

Other financial assets

Credit nsk ansing from other financial assets of the Group compnses cash and cash equivalents and certain
dervative instruments The Group's exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments

The Group manages its credit nsks with regard to bank deposits, throughout the Group, through a number of
controls, which include assessing the credit rating of the bank either from public credit ratings, or mnternal
analysis where public data 1s not avaslable and consideration of the support for financal instituttons from their
central banks or other regulatory authonties

Financial guarantees

The Group's policy 1s to consider the prowision of a financial guarantee to wholly-owned subsidianes, where
there 1s a commercial rationale to do so Guarantees may also be provided to associates and joint ventures in
very Imited circumstances and always only for the Group’s share of the obligation The provision of guarantees
always requires the approval of senior management

(b) Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The
Group's approach to managing liquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient cash to
meet its llabiites when due, under both normal and stressed condrtons, without incurring unacceptable losses
or nsking damage to the Group's reputation

The Group's objectrve 1s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank faciities and by ensunng adequate intemally generated funds The Group's terms of business require
amounts to be paid within 60 days of the date of provision of the service Trade payables are normally settled
within 45 days of the date of purchase
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6 Financial nsk management (continued)

(c) Market risk

Market risk 1s the nisk that changes in market pnces, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments The objective of market nsk
management 1s to manage and control market nisk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the return

The Group buys and sells denvatives and also incurs financial habilities, in order to manage market nsks All
such transactions are carned out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors in the Group Treasury
policy Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage the volatiity in the
consoldated income statement

{1 Currency risk

The proportion of the Group’s net operaling assets denominated n foreign currencies 1s approximately 75 7%
(2014 64 8%) with the result that the Group's consolidated statement of financial position, and in particular
owners equity, can be affected by currency movements when it 1s retranslated at each year end rate The
Group partially miigates the effect of such movements by borrowing in the same currencies as those in which
the assets are denominated and using cross currency swaps The impact of currency movements on operating
profit 1s partially mitigated by interest costs being incurred in foreign currencies The Group operates in some
locations where the local currency s fixed to the Group’s presentation currency of £ further reducing the nsk of
currency movements

Interest on borrowings I1s denominated m the currency of the borrowings Generally, borrowings are
denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the underlying foreign operations of the
Group This provides an economic hedge without denvatives being entered into and therefore hedge accounting
15 not applied in these circumstances

A portion of the Group’'s activities generate part of therr revenue and incur some costs outside thewr mamn
functional currency Due to the diverse number of locations in which the Group operates there 15 some natural
hedging that occurs within the Group When it 1s considered that currency volatility could have a matenal impact
on the results of an operation, hedging using forward foreign curency contracts 1s undertaken to reduce the
short-term effect of currency movements

When the Group's businesses enter into capital expenditure or lease commitments in currencies other than their
main functional currency, these commitments are hedged in most instances using forward contracts and
currency swaps in order to fix the cost when converted to the functional currency The Group classifies s
forward exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value

(n) Interest rate nsk

The Group's exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates pnmanly to the Group's long-term
debt obligations with a fixed/floating interest rate and bank deposits
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6 Financial nsk management {continued}
{c) Market nisk {continued)}
(i) Interest rate nsk (continued)

The Group's policy I1s to manage its interest cost by entenng into interest rate swap agreements, in which the
Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and vanable rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon nctional pnncpal amount These swaps are designated to hedge
underlying debt obligations

At 31 December 2015, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 88 2% (2014 82%) of
the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest

Capital management

The Board's policy I1s to maintain a strong capital base so as to mamtamn investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business Capital consists of share capital, share premium, retained
earnings, hedging and other reserves, actuanal reserve and translation reserve The pnmary objective of the
Group’s capital management 1s to ensure that t mantains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order
to support s business and maximise shareholder value The Board seeks to mantain a balance between the
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and secunty afforded by
a sound capital position

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidianies are subject to externally imposed capital requirements

The key performance ratios as at 31 December are as follows

£ million

Note 2015 2014

Total interest beanng loans and borrowings 19 1,107 3 961 2
Less cash and cash equivalents 18 (269 4) {248 2)
Total net debt 8379 7120
Total Equity 36603 35772
Adjusted EBITDA 7 3407 2880
Net finance costs before separately disclosed items 435 264
Net debt / Equity 023 020
Net debt / Adjusted EBITDA 25 25
Interest cover before separately disclosed tems 78 109
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7. Operating segments

The internal management reports which are prepared under EU-IFRS are reviewed by the Board of Directors ('Chief Operating
Decision Maker) based on the location of the Group's assets and liabilities The Group has identified the following geographic
areas as Its basis of segmentation The Group measures segment performance based on the eamings before separately
disclosed items, mterest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ("Adjusted EBITDA")

«  Asia Pactfic and Indian subcontinent
. Australia and Amencas

¢  Europe and Africa

Each of these operating segments have an indvidual appointed as Segment Director respensible for these segments, who in
turn reports to the Chief Operating Decisien Maker

In addition to the above reportable segments, the Group also reports unallocated head office costs, finance costs, finance
income and tax expense under the head office segment

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment i1s included below

£ rmilhon
2015
Asla Paclfic Australia Europe
Note and Indian and and Head Total
By region subcontinent Americas Africa Cifice group
Revenue 274 4 404 2 254 2 - 8328
Segment results from operations 1172 1136 75 (639) 174 4
Finance income 10 - - - 538 538
Finance expenses 10 - - - (90 9) {90 9}
Profit/(loss) for the year 1172 1136 76 (101 0) 1373
Depreciation and amortisation 290 403 397 04 1094
Impairment losses - - 04 - 04
Share of profit of equity accounted 14 695 06 101 - 80 2
investees before separately disclosed
items
Tax expenses 11 - - - 562 562
Capital expenditure 534 481 126 2 01 2278
_Segment assets
Current and non-current assets 500 4 1,068 4 1,2753 2,475 4 53195
Equity-accounted investments 14 3023 58 1300 74 4455
Taxation assets - - - 167 167
Cash 18 - - - 2694 2694
Total assets 8027 1,074 2 1,405 3 2,768 9 6,0511
_Segment habilites
Current and non-current habilities 1898 3087 128 8 1341 7614
Taxation habilities - - - 467 8 467 8
Financial instruments 20 - - - 543 543
Loans and borrowings 19 - - - 1,107 3 1,107 3
Total hiabilities 1898 308 7 1288 1,7635 2,390 8
Revenue before separately disclosed 2252 404 2 2542 - 8836
items
EBITDA (Adjusted) 146 2 1539 478 (7 3) 340 6
Finance income 10 - - - 47 4 47 4
Finance costs 10 - - - {80 9} {90 9)
Tax expense 11 - - - (56 2} {56 2)
Depreciation and amortisation (29 0} (40 3) (397) (0 4) {109 4)
Adjusted net profit 117 2 1136 81 (107 4) 1315
Adjusted for separately disclosed items g . - (06) 64 £8
Profit from continuing operations 1172 1136 75 (101 0} 13723
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7 Operating segments (continued)
£ milion
2014
Asia Paaific Australia Europe
Note and Indian and and Head Total
By region subcontinent Amencas Alnca Office group
Revenue 2369 3675 2332 - 8376
Segment results from operations 1055 106 2 19 (86 8) 126 8
Finance income 10 - - - 441 441
Finance expenses 10 - - - (72 0) (720)
Profit/(loss) for the year 1055 1086 2 19 (114 7) 989
Depreciation and amortisation 271 T2 A7 086 996
Impaiment losses - - - - -
Share of profit of equity accounted
investees before separately disclosed
items 14 570 05 102 - 677
Tax expenses 11 - - - 616 616
Capital expenditure 2856 373 790 13 146 1
Segment assets
Current and non-current assets 4806 699 4 1,222 5 2447 6 4,850 1
Equity-accounted investments 14 2576 56 876 90 3598
Taxation assets - - - 228 228
Cash 18 - - - 2492 249 2
Total assets 7382 7050 1,3101 2,7286 54819
_Segment habilities
Current and non-current habilitres 163 3 706 94 0 1459 4738
Taxation liabilities - - - 406 2 406 2
Financial mstruments 20 - - - 635 635
Loans and borrowings 19 - - - 961 2 961 2
Total hablities 163 3 706 940 1,576 8 1,904 7
Revenue before separately disclosed
items 2051 367 5 2332 - 8058
EBITDA (Ad)usted) 1315 143 4 390 (25 9) 2880
Finance income 10 - - - 431 431
Finance costs 10 - - - (69 5) (69 5)
Tax expense 1" - - - (61 6) (61 6)
Depreciation and amartisation {27 1) (37 2) (34 7) (0 6) (99 6)
Adjusted net profit 104 4 106 2 43 {114 5) 100 4
Adjusted for separately disclosed items 9 10 - {25) - (15)
Profit from continuing operations 1054 106 2 18 (114 5) 989
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8 Net operating costs

£ mulion
Included within Group operating profit are the following items 2015 2014
Depreciation and amortisation of prepaid leases, intangible assets and property plant and equipment 1094 896
Audit fee 69 10
Operating lease rental 114 4 1070
Hire of plant, machinery and ships 155 158
£ million
Fees paid to the company's principal auditor —- KPMG 2015 2014
Fees paid to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's accounts 01 02

Fees paid to the company's auditor and its associates far services pursuant to legislation
Audit of the company's subsidianes 08 08
Other services - -
09 10

Non-audit and other assurance services

Tax services - 05
Valuation and actuanal services - -
All other services 02 -
02 05
Total of audit and non-audit services 11 15

Fees of £36,000 (2014 £48,000), in respect of the audit, and Nil (2014 Nil), in respect of tax services, were pad to

KPMG LLP by the UK pension scheme

] Separately disclosed items

£ mulhion
2018

Sale of Net financing
Operating profit businesses cost Total
Impaiment of property, plant and equipment {04) - - (0 4)
Net gan on restructunng of loan - - 61 61
Ineffective interest rate swaps - - 03 03
Loss on sale and termination of business - {02) - (0 2)
{0 4) (02) 64 58
£ million
2014

Sale of Net financing
COpearating profit businesses cost Total
Ineffective interest rate swaps - - {15) {15)

- - {15) (15
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10 Net financing expenses
£ mallion
2015 2014
Finance income
Interest income 354 295
Exchange gains 181 146
Fair value gamn 03 -
538 44 1
Finance expenses
Interest expense {62 2) {47 7)
Exchange losses (24 3) (177
Farr value loss - (2 5)
Net interest costs in respect of pension plans (44) (4 1)
{90 9) (7120)
Net financing expense (37.1) (27.9)
1 Taxation
£ million
2015 2014
UK corporation tax
Current tax charge for the year 147 (100)
Adjustment in respect of prior years {0 2) 01
14.5 (99
Overseas tax
Current tax charge for the year {86 &) {50 4)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 88 34
{77 8) (47 0)
Total current tax {63 3) (56 9)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences in the current year 6.8 (24)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 0.3 23
Tax on profit for the year {56 2) {61 6)

The adjustments in respect of pnor penods of £8 9 milion (2014 £1 2 mullion) anses from the finalisation and

agreement of pnor year tax computations for companies in the UK and overseas

The rate of UK corporation tax was reduced from 21% to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 Further reductons to 19% on 1
Apnl 2017 and 18% from 1 Apnl 2020 were enacted In the penod The group re-measured its UK deferred tax
assets and habiliies at the end of the reporting penod in 2015 to the rate of 18% The re-measurement did not

have a matenal effect on the 2015 results
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11 Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting the taxahon charge for the current year

The total taxation charge 1s huigher (2014 higher) than the profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard
rate of corporation tax in the UK at 20 25 per cent (2014 21 5 per cent) The differences are explained as follows

Reconciliation of the effective tax rate % £ millien % £ million
2015 2014
Profit before taxation 1935 1605
Profit before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 20 25% (39 2) 21 5% (34 5)
Effects of
Non-taxable income less expenses not deductible for tax
purposes, other than impaiment of goodwill 08% 16 (7 9%) (12 5)
Tax deduction in respect of pension schemes 08% 15 1 0% 15
Unrelieved tax losses carried forward {13%) (2 4) {7 8%) {12 5)
Utilsation of tax losses 02% 03 52% 283
Accounting profits on chargeable assets - - - -
Changes in the UK corporation tax rate 04% 08 01% 02
Higher rate taxes on overseas eamings (22 5%) 437) {22 7%) (36 5)
Withholding and other taxes suffered oversees (9 §%) (18 4) (4 2%} (6 8)
Tax on earmings from equity accounted investees 17 8% 344 18 7% 300
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods 46% 89 07% 12
Effective tax rate {29 0%) {56 2) (38 4%) (61 6)

The profit before taxation of £193 5 million (2014 £160 5 milion) includes the Group's share of profits of equity
accounted investees within continuing operations of £80 2 million (2014 £67 7 million) which 18 net of a tax
charge of £34 4 milien (2014 £30 0 million)

The Group’s overseas tax rates are typically a mixture of rates higher and lower than 20 25 per cent They
include the effect of overseas tax benefits available to infrastructure projects

47




P&O Annual Report

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

12 Intangible assets
£ million
Port concassion
nghts Goocdwill Total
Cost
At 1 January 2015 4241 374 4615
Disposals (11N {01) (12)
Additions 708 - 708
Acquired through business combinations 2545 733 3278
Exchange adjustments (13) 07) (20)
At 31 December 2015 7470 1099 856 9
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2015 {194 4} - (194 4)
Disposals 11 - 11
Charge for the year {21 1) - {211)
Exchange adjustments on - o7
At 31 December 2015 {215 1} - {215 1)
Net book amount at 31 December 2015 5319 1098 6418
Cost
At 1 January 2014 3581 343 392 4
Disposals (0 1) - 0 1)
Additions 507 - 507
Acquired through business combinations 01 26 27
Exchange adjustments 153 05 158
At 31 December 2014 4241 374 4615
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014 (168 6} - (169 6)
Disposals - - -
Charge for the year (17 2) - (17 2}
Exchange adjustments (7 6) - (7 6}
At 31 December 2014 (194 4) - {194 4)
Net book amount at 31 December 2014 2297 374 267 1

At 31 December 2015, pert concession nghts with a carrying amount of £4 0 mithon (2014 £4 2 milion) are
pledged to secure bank loans (refer to note 19)
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12 Intangible assets (continued)

Impaiment testing of goodwill

Goodwll acquired through business combinations and port concession nghts with tndefinite useful lives have
been allocated to vanous cash-generating units (“CGU"), which are reportable business units, for the purposes

of impairment testing

Impairment testing 1s done at operating port (or group of poits) level that represents an individual CGU Detatls

of the CGUs by operating segment are shown below

Cash-generating units

aggregated by operating Carrying Carrying Perpetuty
segment amount of amount of [hscount grawth
part concessien
Goodwill rights with indefinite rata rate
useful Ife
£ million £ million % %
2015
Europe and Africa 108 5851 5575 2526
Australia and Americas 865 - 6070 25
Asla Pacific and Indian subcontinegnt 12 6 - 85120 25
Total 109 9 5851
2014
Europe and Afnca 132 5851 5565 25286
Austraha and Amencas 133 - 65 25
Asia Pacific and !ndian subcontinent 109 - §5125 25
Total 374 585 1

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on therr value In use calculated using cash
flow projections based on the financial budgets approved by management covenng a three year penod and a
further outlook for five years, which i1s considered appropnate in view of the outlook for the industry and the
long-term nature of the concession agreements held 1e generally for a penod of 25-50 years

In the view of the senior management, the perpetual growth rate is the mimmum growth rate expected to be
achieved beyond the eight year penod

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations .
The following descnbes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections 1o

undertake impairment testing of goodwill and port concession nghts with indefinite useful hves

Budgeted margins ~ The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted margin 1s the average
gross margin achieved m the year immediately before the budgeled year, adjusted for expected efficiency
improvemenits, price fluctuations and manpower costs

Discount rates — These represent the cost of capital adjusted for the respective location nisk factors The Group
uses the post-tax industry average Weighted Average Cost of Capital which reflects the country specific nsk
adjusted discount rate

Cost inflation — The forecast general pnce index 1s used to determine the cost wnflation dunng the budget year
for the relevant countnes where the Group 1s operating

Perpetuty growth rate — In management's view, the perpetuity growth rate is the mimimum growth rate expected
to be achieved beyond the eight year penod This is based on the overall regional economic growth forecasted
and the Group's existing internal capacity changes for a given region The Group also takes into account
competition and regional capacity growth to provide a comprehensive growth assumption for the entire portfolio

The values assigned to key assumphions are consistent with the past expenence of management

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The calculation of value in use for the CGU 1s sensitive to future earnings and therefore a sensitivity analysis
was performed The analysis demonstrated that a 10% decrease in earnings for a future penod of three years
from the reporting date would not result in mpairment
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13 Property Plant and Equipment

£ millson
Property Ships qu:m Capltalp'w:;:;: Total
Cost
At 1 January 2015 7899 1650 1,216 7 548 2,226 4
Additions 03 33 84 1450 1570
Acquisitions through business combinations 07 - 137 79 223
Transfers from capital work-in-progress 58 131 283 (47 2) -
Disposals {(01) (24 2) {10 2) - {34 5)
Exchange adjustments 20 {(17) (8 4) (14) (95)
At 31 December 2015 798 6 1555 1,2485 1591 23617
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 (157 8) (50 1) {281 4) - {489 3)
Charge for the year (23 8) 89) (55 6) - (88 3)
Impairment losses - - {0 4) - (0 4)
Acquisitions through business combinations 01 - 07 - 13
Disposals 01 129 99 - 229
Exchange adjustments {0 2) 14 63 - 75
At 31 December 2015 {181 6) (44 7) {320 5) - {546 8)
Net book amount at 31 December 2015 6170 1108 9280 1591 1,814 9
Cost
At 1 January 2014 722 4 1362 7953 4397 2,093 6
Additions 60 157 92 645 954
Acquisitions through business combinations - 54 2 30 04 576
Transfers from capital work-in-progress 559 04 3840 (450 3) -
Disposals (0 9) (28 4) (20 8) - {50 1)
Exchange adjustments 65 (13 1} 360 05 299
At 31 December 2014 7899 1650 12167 548 2,226 4
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 {136 0) (62 0) {240 0) - {438 0)
Charge for the year 227) (76) (52 1) - (82 4)
Acquisitions through business combinations - (14 8) (19 - (16 7)
Disposals 09 284 200 - 493
Exchange adjustments - 59 (7 4) - (15
At 31 December 2014 (157 8) (50 1) (281 4) - (489 3)
Net book amount at 31 December 2014 6321 1149 9353 54 8 1,7371

At 31 December 2015, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of £1,306 1 milion (2014 £1,2438
million) are pledged to secure bank loans (refer to note 19) At 31 December 2015, the net carrying value of the leased
plant and equipment and other assets was £79 7 milbon (2014 £85 million)

Borrowing costs capitalised to property, plant and equipment amounted to £13 7 milllon (2014 £17 1 milkon) with a
captalisaton rate i the range of 294% to 391% per annum (2014 294% to 391% per annum)
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14 Investments in equity accounted investees

The following table summanses the financial information for equity-accounted investees, adjusted for far
value adjustments at acquishion and reconciled to the carrying amount of Group's Interest In equity-

accounted investees as included in consolidated statement of financial posiion

£ million
Cost at 1 January 2014 3639
Additions 11
Share of profits for the year 677
Share of actuanal losses, net of tax 06
Share of movement in effective portion of cash-flow hedges, net of tax 08
Dwidends (815)
Exchange adjustments 72
Cost at 31 December 2014 3598
Cost at 1 January 2015 3598
Additrions 361
Share of profits for the year 802
Share of actuanial losses, net of tax (05)
Share of movement in effective portion of cash-flow hedges, net of tax (034)}
Share of movement in other reserves 20
Dividends (239)
Exchange adjustments (73)
Cost at 31 December 2015 445 5
Summansed financial infermation for equity accounted investees
£ milion
2015 2014
Sales and other operating revenues 54 3421
Profit before interest and taxation 126 8 1103
Finance costs (12 0} (12 6)
Profit before taxation 1148 977
Taxation (34 4) (30 0)
Profit for the year 804 677
Non-current assets 6088 6229
Current assets 2148 1329
Total assets 823 6 7558
Current labilities (96 4) (135 4)
Non-current habilities (346 0) (3123)
Total kabilities (442 4) (447 7)
Net assets 381 2 308 1
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14 Investments in equity accounted investees (continued)

Significant investments in prnincipal Joint Ventures and Associates include

O“Triemreg Country of mcorporation Principal activties
Joint ventures
PT Temunal Petikemas Surabaya 43 00% Indonesia Container terminal operations
Associates
Antwerp Gateway NV 60 00% Belgium Container terminal operations
Portus Indico 48 50% Umted Arab Emirates Container terminal operations
Asian Temunal Inc 4172% Philippines Container terminal operations
Laem Chabang International Terminal Co Ltd 3450% Thailand Container terminal operations
Eurefos SARL 5000% France Container terminal operations
Generale de Manutention Portuaire S A 5000% France Container terminal operations
Qingdac Quanwan Container Temminal Co Ltd 29 00% People's Republic of China Container terminal operations
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15 Deferred tax assets and habilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities attnbutable to the following

£ million

Assets Liabilihes Net 2015
Property, plant and equipment (18 549 531
Intangible assets e 651 645
Investment in equity accounted investees 0o 129 129
Employee benefits 48 00 48
Provisions 10 00 1o
Tax value of loss carned forward recognised (162) 90 16 2)
Financial instruments 67 01 98
Capital gain 00 2660 266 0
Other {18) 235 217
Total tax (assets)/liabihties (359) 4225 3866
Tax offset 358 (35 8) ao
Total tax (assets}habilibes after offset 01 3867 386 6

Assets Liabiities Net 2014
Property, plant and equipment 22 58 2 56 0
Intangible assets (05) 01 (0 4)
Investment in equity accounted investees - 17 2 172
Employee benefits (5 8) B (58)
Provisions (189} ) (19
Tax value of loss carried forward recogrised (11 8) - (11 8)
Financial instruments (13 1) 63 (12 8)
Capital gain - 2529 2529
Other {11) 183 172
Total tax (assets)y/labilities {36 4} 3470 3106
Tax offset 280 (28 0) -
Total tax {assets)y/liabiities after offset {84) 3180 3106

Deferred tax 1s not recognised on losses of £469 0 rullion (2014 £481 3milion) where utilisation 1s unceriain, either
because they have not been agreed with tax authorities, or because the hkelihood of future taxable profits 1s not
sufficiently certan, or because of the impact of tax holidays

Under current legislation, £406 1m (2014 £411 2m) of the tax losses shown above can be carmed forward
indefinitely
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15 Deferred tax assets and habihties (continued)

Movement in deferred tax during the year

P&O Annual Report

£ milhon
Balance Acquired Recognised
at 1 balances in other Balance at 31
January Exchange Recognised and comprehen- December
2015  movements in income _ dispesals sive Income 2015
07
Property, plant and equipment 560 on (36 14 0o 531
Intangible assets ©4) 35) 7 691 oo 645
Investment in joint ventures and associates 172 @1 ‘2 0o 0o 129
Employee benefits (68 00 03 00 07 s
Provisions {19) 01 08 00 0o (10}
Tax value of logs carned forward recognised (118) 01 @5} 00 0o (162)
Financial instruments (128) (©1 00 00 33 @6
2529 131 00 00 00 266 0
Capsital gain
Other 17 2 00 48 00 {03) 217
Total tax liabilities/{assets) 3108 8% T 705 37 386 6
Balance Acquired  Recognised
at 1 balances in other Balance at 31
January Exchange Recognised and comprehen- December
2014 movements in income  disposals  sive income 2014
Property, plant and equipment 587 10 {7 6) 3g - 56 0
Intangible assets (0 4) 01 (0 1} - - (0 4)
Investment in joint ventures and associates 161 - 11 - - 17 2
Employee benefits (39) 01 (0 1} - {1 9) (58)
Provisions {16) - 02 01) - 19
Tax value of loss carned forward recognised (207 18 71 - - (11 8)
Financial instruments 32) {02} 01 - {9 5} {12 8)
Capital gain 2384 141 04 - - 2529
Other 131 02 40 01 {C2) 172
Total tax llabilities/{assets) 296 5 171 47 40 {11 86) 3106
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16 Trade and other receivables
£ mullion
2015 2014

Current Non-current Current Non-curent
Trade recewvables 867 - "y -
Other recevables 635 147 496 134
Prepayments and accrued income 308 06 366 43
Employee benefit assets - - - 02
1810 153 157 9 179

Loans to group undertakings
Loans to the intermediate parent company 24721 - 24411 -
l.oans to fellow subsidiaries 1307 173 1600 224
2,602 8 173 2,601 1 224

Trade recevables are reported net of a provision of £1 2 milion (2014 £1 3 million)

The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are
disclosed in note 29

Amounts owed by Group undertakings bear interest in reference to LIBOR and are repayable by mutual agreement of
the relevant parties The directors believe that these loans are recoverable which 1s supported by cash repayments of
£141 2 million received tnh 2015 (2014 £87 2 million)

17. Other investments
£ mithon
2015 2014
Debt secunties held-to-maturty 51 55
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 242 242
293 297
(a) The movement n debt secunties held to matunty mainly refates to redemption of £ 0 4 nullion (2014 £06
million) during the year
{s)] The movement schedule for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 1s as given below -
£ milon
2015 2014
Balance as of 1* January 242 242
Additions dunng the year - -
Balance as of 31™ December 242 242

The Group's exposure to credit, currency and interest rate nsks relaled to other investments i1s disclosed in note 29
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

£ milhon

2015 2014

Bank balances 100 8 1605
Call deposits 1557 817
Deposits under lien 129 70
Cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of financial position 2694 249 2
Bank overdrafts - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per the consohdated statement of cash flows 268 4 2492

The Group's exposure 1o interest rate nsk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and labilities are

disclosed in note 29

The deposits under lien are placed to collateralise some of the borrowings of the Company's subsidianes (refer

to note 19)

19 Interest bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group interest beanng loans and borrowings,
which are measured at amortised costs For information about the Group’'s exposure to interest rate and foreign

currency rnsk, see note 29

£ mihon
2018 2014

Non-current
Secured bank loans 6924 5242
Mortgage debenture stock 14 14
Unsecured 10an 77 63
Unsecured bank loans 3523 307 4
Unsecured bond i1ssues 54 51
Finance lease habilities 139 165
Total non-current 1,0731 8609

Current

Secured bank loans 234 897
Unsecured bank loans 64 66
Finance lease habilities 44 40
Total current 342 1003
Total current and non-current 1,107 3 9612
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19 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Terms and debt repayment schedule
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£ milion

Nominal

Year of

Face value

Camrying value

Interest rate maturity
Unsecured loans
CAD Vanable 2018 605 605
INR Vanable 2019-2022 1239 1239
uso Vanable 2018 1743 174 3
Secured loans
uso Variable 2016- 2030 894 894
usb 300% 2019 16 16
usD 598% to 8% 2022 228 228
EUR Vanable 2016-2022 125 125
EUR 4 25% 2031 54 54
PKR Vanable 2019 421 421
cept Vanable 2019-2024 5427 5427
GBP 7 50% 2017 {07) 07)
Unsecured bond 1ssues
usp 7 875% 2027 54 54
Unsecured loan
EUR 2 50% 4 00% indefinite 77 77
duration
Mortgage debentures stocks
GBP 3 50% Undated 14 14
Finance leases
Varnous currencies 262%to 13 58% 2018- 2054 1813 183
Total 1,107 3 1,107 3

F The above loans relating to London Gateway Port were refinanced in March 2016 with GBP 580m, for a tenure

of 30 years
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19. Interest bearing loans and borrowings {continued)
2014 £ milkon
Inte:i?m "Y‘::Jrn?; Faca valua Carrying value
Unsecured lpans
CAD Vanable 2018 74 2 742
INR Vanable 2018-2019 74 4 74 4
usD Vartable 2018 1654 165 4
Secured loans
uso Vanable 2015- 2020 106 4 106 4
usp 300% 2019 20 20
usD 565% to 8% 2022 237 237
EUR Vanable 2015-2031 158 158
EUR 6 32% 2015 02 02
PKR Vanable 2019 417 417
ZAR 9 50% 2017 02 02
GBP Vanable 2031 4227 4227
GBP 8 50% 2017 12 12
Unsecured bond 1ssues
ush 7 88% 2027 51 51
Unsecured loan
EUR 25%10400%  Foarableon 63 63
Mortgage debentures stocks
GBP 350% Undated 14 14
Finance leases
Various currencies 2 6% to 30 0% 2015- 2054 205 205
Total 961 2 961 2

Finance lease habilities

The Group classifies certain property, plant and equipment as finance leases where it retains all nsks and rewards
incidental to the ownership The net carrying values of these assets are disclosed in note 13

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net mimimum lease
payments are as follows

£ million

Future Future Present

Minimum finance value of

Loase harg Laaza

Payments Payments

2015

Less than one year 62 {12) 50
Between one and five years 129 {(21) 108
More than five years 54 (29) 25
Total 245 {6 2) 182
2014

Less than one year 53 (13) 40
Between one and five years 166 24 142
More than five years 57 (34) 23
Total 276 (7 1) 205
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19 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Certain property, plant and equipment and port concession nghts are pledged against the facilties obtained from
the banks (refer to note 12 and note 13) The deposits under lien amounting to £ 12 9 mdlion (2014 £70 million)
are placed to collateralise some of the borrowings of the Company's subsidiaries (refer to note 18)

There has been no issuance or repayment of debt securities in the current year (2074 Ni) At 31 December 2015,
the undrawn committed borrowang facilities of £ 244 3 million (2014 £ 389 6 muliion) were available to the Group,
in respect of which all condittons precedent had been met

20. Trade and other payables

£ milbon

2015 2014
Current Non-current Current Non-currant
Trade payables 490 - 511 -
Other unsecured payables 97 6 116 782 92
Accruals and deferred income 1050 85 106 6 87
Fair value of denvative financial instruments 08 535 01 634
252 4 736 2360 813
Loan from parent undertaking - - - -
Loan from feliow subsidianes 518 2918 350 261
518 2918 350 261

The Group's exposure to currency and liquidity nsk related to trade and other payables s disclosed in note 29
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21 Non-controlling interest
LY E
million
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Europe mdm?ut:l?; Other
and immatenal Gross Europe and indvidually Gross
Africa subsidiaries Total Africa region immatenal Total
region . subsidianes *
Balance sheet information
Non-current assets B7 4
Current assets 600
Non-current llabilities (34 5)
Current liabrlities (25 8)
Net assets (100%) 871
Carrying amount of NC1 as at 31
December 301 301 427 278 705
Income statement information
Revenue 1108 128 2
Profit after tax 127 139
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 04 (7 4)
Total comprehensive income (100%), net of
tax 131 131 65 65
Profit allocated to NCI 62 130 19 2 68 15 40 222
QC| allocated to NCI 02 (30) (2 8) (36) 10 {2 6)
Total comprehensive income allocated to 64 100 164 32 16 4 198
NCI
Cash flows from operating activities 275
Cash flows from nvesting activites 48
Cash flows from financing activities (14)

Dividends paid to NC) - -

* There are no matenal subsidianes with NCI in the Group

22 Issued capital and reserves

Share cap:tal and share premium account

The balances classified as share capital and share premium account tnclude the total net proceeds on ssue of the
Company's equity share captal The authonsed share capital 1s £853 2 million (2014 £953 2 mullion) being the allotted
capital together with £110 0 milhon (2014 £110 0 million} of unclassified shares The nominal value of each class of
share untt 15 £1 The number of shares held 1s 843 2 milhon The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital was
£843 2 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014 £843 2 million)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations that are not integral to the operations of the Company, as well as from the effective portion of
translation of habiliies that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign subsidiary
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22 Issued capital and reserves (continued)

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change In the fair value of cash flow
hedging mstruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet cccurred

Other reserves

Other reserves of £170 5 million {2014 £170 5 million) 1s made up of the Group's merger reserve of £454 2 million
(2014 £454 2 millon) and capital reserve £161 4 million (2014 £161 4 mifhon), less goodwill deducted from
reserves of £451 9 milton (2014 £451 9 milion), all ansing under UK GAAP prior to transition to IFRS, plus a
capital redemption reserve of £3 3 million (2014 £3 3 mulion) and amounts relating to share based payments of
£3 5 milion (2014 £3 5 million}

23 Employees

£ milbon
—Employee costs 2015 2014
Wages and salaries 186 6 166 1
Social secunty costs 103 97
Pension and other post-retirement benefit costs 249 222
2218 1980

Average number of employees at 31 December
UK full time 1,069 985
UK part time 20 22
Overseas full ime 4,699 4,688
Oversees part tme 148 104
Sea Staff 363 456
6,299 6,255

24 Employee benefits

The Group participates in a number of pension schemes throughout the world The principal scheme 1s located In
the UK (the “P&0 UK Scheme™ The P&0 UK Scheme 1s a funded defined benefit scheme and was closed to
routine new members on 1 January 2002 The pension fund s legally separated from the Group and managed by
a Trustee board The assets of the scheme are managed on behalf of the Trustee by ndependent fund managers

The Group also operates a number of smaller defined benefit and defined contribution schemes In addition, the
Group parficipates in vanious industry multi-employer schemes, the most significant of which 1s the Merchant Navy
Officers’ Pension Fund (the “MNOPF Scheme”) and 1s in the UK These generally have assets held in separate
trustee administered funds which are legally separated from the Group

The board of a pension fund in the UK s required by law to act in the best interests of the fund participants and 1s
responsible for setting certain policies (e g nvestment, contnbutions and mndexation pelicies) and determining
recovery plans If appropnate

These defined benefit funds expose the Group to actuanal nisks, such as longevity nsk, currency nisk, interest rate
nsk and market (iInvestment) nsk In addition, certain mutti-employer industry schemes the Group can be exposed
to a pro-rata share of the credit nisk of other paricipating employers
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24 Employee benefits {continued)

Reconcihation of assets and habilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial posibon

£ milion
2015 2014
Non-current
Defined benefit pension schemes net habiities 1209 1336
Liabilities from defined contnbution pension schemes - -
Liabilibies in respect of long service leave 03 03
Liabthties i respect of other deferred compensation 09 11
1221 1350
Current
Liabilihes for deferred compensation 68 65
Net hability 128 9 141 5
Reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows
Employee benefits assets included within non-current receivables (refer to note 18) - 02)
Employee benefit habilities non-current 1221 1352
Employee benefit habilities current 68 65
128 9 141 5

The defined benefit pension schemes net habiliies of £120 9 million (2014 £133 6 million) 1s In respect of the
total Group schemes shown on page 66

The current portion of employee benefits habilities includes a hability of £5 4 million (2014 £5 1 million) in respect
of annual leave, £0 4 millon (2014 £0 5 million) in respect of long service leave, and £1 milhon (2014 £09
million) in respect of sick leave and other miscellaneous employee benefit items

An expense of £23 milicn (2014 £19 8 milion) has been recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the long term employee benefit schemes £5 8 million (2014 £4 6 million) n respect of defined benefit schemes,
£7 5 million (2014 £7 5 milhon) in respect of defined contnbution schemes and £9 7 million (2014 £7 7 million) in
respect of other employee benefits

A net finance cost of £4 5 million (2014 £4 1 milien) in respect of defined benefit funds has been recognised In
the consolidated income statement

The re-measurement of the net defined hability, gross of tax, recognised in consolidated statement of other
comprehensive iIncome 15 as follows

£ mifhon

2015 2014

Actuanial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year (53 2) 1231
Return on plan assets lesser/ (greater) than the discount rate 391 (104 0)
Change of share in multi-employer scheme (0 9) 181
Movement in sunimurn funding hability 188 52
38 42 4
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24 Employee benefits (continued}

Actuanal valuations and assumptions

The latest valuations of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to 31 December 2015 by qualffied
independent actuanes The pnncipal assumptions are included in the table below

The assumptions used by the actuanes are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanal
assumptions, which, due to the tmescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice There are
ongoing discussions with Trustees in regards o deficit recovery plans

P&0 UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme Other Schemes

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Discount rates 370% 360% 3 70% 360% 390% 370%

Discount rates Bulk Annuity Asset 3 50% 335% - - - -

Expected rates of salary increases - 2 50% - - 320% 3 20%
Pension increases

- deferment 2 80% 2 B0% 2 20% 215% 3 00% 3 00%

- payment 2 80% 2 80% 310% 305% 3 00% 300%

Inflation 3 20% 315% 3 20% 3 15% 320% 3 20%

From 1 December 2011, changes have been made to the benefits provided by the P&0O UK Scheme These
include a resiniction to pay increases equal to the lower of Retail Pnce Index and 2 5% in a Scheme Year This
restriction 1s reflected in the pay increase assumption above and there 1s no allowance for promotional increases
The P&0O UK Scheme was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2015, so future pay increases wiil no longer
be relevant after this date

The assumptions for pensioner longevity under both the P&O UK Scheme and the MNOPF Scheme are based
on an analysis of pensioner death trends under the respective schemes over many years

For illustration, the life expectancies for the two schemes at age 65 now and In the future are detailed in the table
below

Male Female

Aga 65 now AgaBSanDyetm Age 65 now A%:aer.‘islrt:rﬁg
2015
P&0O UK Scheme 234 266 258 289
MNOPF Scheme 227 256 263 293
2014
P&C UK Scheme 233 263 2586 287
MNOPF Scheme 226 254 262 292

At 31 December 2015 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 15 8 years (2014 16
years)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the actuanal assumptons, holding other assumptions constant (in
practice, this 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated), would have
increased the net defined benefit lability as at 31 December 2015 by the amounts shown below

£ mallion
0 1% reduction in discount rate 123
0 1% increase in inflation assumption and related assumptions 54
0 25% p a increase In the long term rate of mortality improvement 79

The methods and type of assumptions used In prepanng sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous penod
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The schemes’ strategic asset allocatrons across the sectors of the man asset classes are
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Group
schemeas
P&Q UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme Other Schemes fair value
£'million Erullion £'million E'mulion

2015
Equities 306 3 547 647 4257
Bonds 1205 94 0 767 2012
Other 207 - 228 435
Value of insured pensioner habilty 7633 - - 763 3
1,2108 148 7 164 2 1,5237

2014
Equities 3210 487 863 426 0
Bonds 1175 898 771 284 4
Other 196 - 248 44 4
Value of insured pensioner lability 8168 - - 816 8
1,274 9 1385 158 2 1,5716

With the exception of the msured pensicner hability all matenal investmenis have quoted prices in active

markets
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24 Employee benefits {continued)

Reconciiation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obhgations and fair value of scheme
assets faor the penod ended 31 December 2015 and 2014

financial position as at 31 December 2014

£ million
Defined benefit pansion schemes Total
P&O UK MNOPF Other Group
Scheme Scheme Schemes Schemes
Present value of obligation at 1 January 2015 (1,328 7) {158 0) (209 9) (1,696 6)
Employer's interest cost (46 6) (56) 77 (59 9)
Employer's current service cost (04) - (2 8) (32)
Settlements during the year 88 - - a8
Contnbutions by scheme participants - - 07) {(07)
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - 01 o1
Benefits pad 540 71 68 779
Change of share in multi-employer scheme - - 35 35
Expenence gains on scheme habilities 233 59 33 325
Actuarial gain on scheme habilittes due to change in } _ 13 13
demographic assumptions
Actuarnial gains on scheme liabihities due fo change in
financial sa:jlssumptu'ms I 166 7 11 194
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2015 {1,263 0) {148 9) (205 0) {1,616 9)
Present value of obhigation at 1 January 2014 (1,251 3) (130 8} (154 6) (1,536 7)
Employer's interest cost (530 (56} {69 (65 5)
Employer's current service cost (04) - {22) {2 6)
Contnbutions by scheme participants - - 07 {e7)
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - 02 (02)
Benefits paid 667 57 69 793
Change of share in multi-employer scheme - {14 6) (32 5) (47 1)
Experience gains/(loss) on scheme habilities 85 g2 {14 8) {61)
Actuanal losses on scheme liabiities due to change in (18) . : (18)
demographic assumptions
Actuanal losses on scheme Labilities due to change In
financial assumptions ’ (97 4) (129) (49) (1152}
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2014 {1,328 7} {158 0) {209 9) {1,696 6)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2015 1,274 9 1385 158 2 1,5716
Interest Income on assets 44 8 50 589 557
Return on plan assets greater than the discount rate (43 6) 56 (11 (39 1)
Contnbutions by employer 87 73 1086 266
Contributions by scheme participants - - o7 07
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - o1 01
Benefits pad (64 0) {7 1) {6 8) {77 9)
Change of share in multi-employer scheme - - (26) (26)
Settlements during the year 84) - - 84)
Admunistration costs incurred during the year (16) {0 6) (08 (30)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 2015 1,210 8 148 7 164 2 1,523 7
Defined benefit schemes net habiities (52 2) {0 2) (40 8) {93 2)
Minimum funding liabithty - (20 6) {71) (27 7)
Net hability recogmised in the consoilidated statement of
financial posmog as at 31 December 2015 (522) {20 8) (479) (1209)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2014 1,2067 1056 126 1 1,4384
Interest income on assets 512 46 57 615
Return on plan assets greater than the discount rate 763 180 97 104 0
Contnibutions by employer 86 52 54 192
Contributions by scheme participants - - 07 07
Effect of movement in exchange rates - - 01 01
Benefits paid (66 7) 57 (69) {79 3)
Change of share in multi-employer scheme - 111 179 290
Administration costs incurred dunng the year {(12) {0 3) {0 5) (2 0}
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 2014 1,274 9 1385 158 2 1,571 6
Defined benefit scheme net habilities (538) (19 5) 51 7) {125 0)
Minimum funding liability - (86) - (8 6)
Net lability recognised in the consolidated statement of (53 8) (28 1) (517) (133 6)
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Where a surplus anses on a scheme, in accordance with IAS1¢ and IFRIC14, the surplus 1s recognised as an
asset only if it represents an unconditional economic benefit available to the Group in future Any surplus in excess
of this benefit 1s not recogmsed in the statement of financial position A minimum funding liability anses where the
statutory funding requirements are such that future contnbutions in respect of past service will result in a future
unrecognisable surplus

The below table shows the movement in minimum funding hability -

£ million

2015 2014

Minimum funding hability as on 1 January (86) (33)

Interest cost on mimmum funding hability 03) (01)

Actuanal movement during the year (18 8) (52)

Effect of movement in exchange rates - -

Mimmum funding liability as on 31 December 27 7) {8 6)
It 1s anticipated that the Group will make the following contnbutions to the pension schemes in 2016

Total Group

P&0 UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme Other Schemes gchemes

£ million £ million £milion Emilien

Pension scheme contnbutions 84 48 74 206

P&0O UK Scheme

Formal actuanal valuations of the P&0O UK Scheme are normally carned out tnenmially by qualified independent
actuanes, the latest completed regular valuation report for the scheme being at 31 March 2013, using the
projected unit credit methed

As a result of valuation P&0O commutted to regular monthly deficit payments from April 2013 of £697 6 mullion until
November 2021

In December 2007, as part of a process developed with the Group to de-nsk the pension scheme, the Trustee
transferred £800 miflon of P&O UK Scheme assets to Paternoster (UK) Ltd, in exchange for a bulk annuty
insurance policy to ensure that the assets (in the Company balance sheet and in the Scheme) will always be equal
to the current value of the hability of the pensions in payment at 30 June 2007, thus removing the funding risks for
these liabilities

Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund

The MNOPF Scheme 1s an industry wide multi-employer defined benefit multi-employer scheme in which officers
employed by companies within the Group have participated

The scheme 15 divided into two sections, the Old Section and the New Section, both of which are closed to new
members
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Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund (continued)

The Old Section has been closed to benefit accrual since 1978 The Old Scheme completed a buy-out of all s
members benefit obligations m July 2014, following which the Old Section was wound up Therefore, no further
nabilites were assigned to the Group n respect of the Old Scheme The Group could not identify its share of the
underlying assets and habilities of the Old Section on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore accounted
for contributions and payments to the Old Section under IAS19 as If it were a defined contnbution scheme until the
scheme was wound up dunng the year

The most recent formal actuarial valuation of the New Section was carried out as at 31 March 2015 This resulted
in a deficit of £3 milion The Trustee Board believe their investment strategy will address this deficit and therefore
has not 1ssued deficit contribution notices to employers i respect of the 2015 actuanal valuation

Following the valuation the Trustee and Employers have agreed contributions, in addition to those ansing from the
31 March 2003, 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2009 valuatons, which will be paid to the Section by participating
employers over the penod to 30 September 2023 These contnbutions include an allowance for the impact of
irrecoverable contributions in respect of companies no longer tn existence or not able to pay therr share The
Group's aggregated outstanding contnibutions from these valuations are payable as follows 2016 £4 8 million, 2017
to 2020 £4 2 milion per annum and 2021 to 2023 £0 8 million per annum

The Trustee set the payment terms for each participating employer in accordance with the Trustee's Contnbution
Collectron Policy which includes credit vetting

The Group's share of the net deficit of the New Section at 31 December 2015 1s estimated at 5 33%
Merchant Navy Ratings’ Pension Fund {“MNRPF")

The Merchant Navy Ratings’ Pension Fund (the “MNRPF Scheme’) I1s an industry wide multi-employer defined
benefit pension scheme in which sea staff employed by companies within the Group have participated The scheme
has a significant funding deficit and has been closed to further benefit accrual

The most recent formal actuanal valuation was carned out as at 31 March 2014 The Group’s deficit contnbutions
ansing from this valuation totalled £28 3 million (equating to 7 3% share of the net deficit) Deficit contnbutions of £5
million were paid into the Scheme in 2015 Negotiations are ongoing for a repayment penod for the remaining £23 3
million deficit, at which 6% pa interest will be charged

Certain Group companies, which are no longer current employers in the MNRPF had settled thewr statutory debt
obligation and were not considered 1o have any tegal obligation with respect to the on-going defiait in the fund
However, following a legal challenge, by Stena Line Limited, the High Court decided that the Trustees could require
all employers that had ever participated in the scheme to make contributions to fund the deficit  Although the
Group appealed the decision, it was not overturned

The trustees notified these Group companies of therr esttmated share of current deficit dunng December 2012
equating to 30% The method of deficit allocaton has still to be approved by the court However, based on this
inttial indication, the Group has provided for this liability after an allowance for the impact of irrecoverable
contnbutions n respect of compames no longer In existence or able to pay their share The net impact of £10 9
million was reflected as an actuanal movement in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income In
2012
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25

Commitments

Capital commitments

£ rullion

2015 2014

Estimated capital expenditure contracted for as at 31 December 2055 1354

Operating lease commitments
£ million
Property Others

2015 2014 2015 2014

Within one year 468 423 69 2 722
Between one and five years 188 1 1706 2209 2035
Between five and ten years 222 4 160 9 2650 2667
Between ten and twenty years 4137 204 1 2388 2433
Between twenty and thirty years 3521 134 8 939 112
Between thirty and fifty years 1059 825 17 2 -
Between fifty and seventy years - - - -
1,3291 7952 8949 796 9

26

(@)

(b
(©

(d)

Contingent hiabilittes

The Group has contingent liabifities amounting to £22 5 milhon {2014 £252 million) in respect of
payment guarantees and £71 7 milllion (2014 £68 6 mullion) in respect of performance guarantees and
outstanding letters of credit 1Issued by the Group's bankers amounting to £0 5 million {2014 £0 8 milhon)
The bank guarantees and letters of credit are ansing in the ordinary course of business from which it 1s
anticipated that no matenal habilities will arise

The Group has contingent labilities in respect of guarantees 1ssued on behalf of equity accounted
investees amounting to £11 7 million (2014 £3 4 milhon)

The Group through its 100% owned subsichary Mundra Intemational Container Terminal Private Limited
("MICT"} has devetoped and i1s operating the container terminal at the Mundra port in Gujarat

In 2006, MICT received a show cause notice from Guparat Mantime Board (*GMB") requiring MICT to
demonstrate that the undertaking given by its parent company, P&0O Ports (Mundra) Prnivate Limited, with
regard to its shareholding in MICT has not been breached in view of P&O Ports being taken over by the
Group GMB, MICT and Adam Ports and Special Economic Zone (“APSEZ") have signed consen} terms
accepting an amicable settlement of all disputes between the parties Presently steps are underway to
file the signed consent terms and withdraw the court proceedings

Chennai Port Trust "CPT") had raised a demand for an amount of £12 2 million (2014 £12 2 million)
from Chennai Container Terminal Limited (*CCTL"), a subsidary of the Company, on the basis that
CCTL had falled to fulfil its obligations in respect of non-transhipment containers for a penod of four
consecutive years from 1 December 2003 CCTL had subsequently paid £6 5 million (2014 £6 5 million)
under dispute m 2008 CCTL had inihated arbitration proceedings against CPT in this regard The
arbitral tnbunal passed its award on November 26, 2012 ruling in favour of CCTL However, CPT
appealed against this order, which was upheld by Madras High Court on 8 January 2014 and
accordingly a provision has been recognised against the above recewvable CCTL lodged an appeal
before the Division Bench of Madras High Court along with a stay petition on 31 January 2014 The
Appeal was taken up for heanng and admitted on 3 February 2014 CPT also made a statement befare
the Court that no further action would be taken by CPT against CCTL The Court has admitted the
matter and 15 pending for final heanng and disposal before the Division Bench of Madras High Court
The Group 1s confident that the case will be in favour of CCTL
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27 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group,
the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over it i
making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common
control or significant influence 1 e part of the same Parent Group

Related parties represent associated companies, shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the
Group, the Parent Company, Ultmate Parent Company and entities jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
such paries Pncing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management The
terms and conditions of the related party iransactions were made on an arm's length basis

Transactions with parent group

Amounts due from the parent group are disclosed in note 16 Interest earned on these loans amounted to £17 2
million (2014 £159 milion) Amounts due to the parent group are disclosed in note 20, these loans bear no
interesi

Management fees of £12 3 million (2014 £8 6 million) were patd to DP World group companies during the year

Management fees of £1 4 million (2014 £1 8 milion) were received from DP World group companies dunng the
year

There were no other transactions with the parent group during the year (2014 Nil)

Transactions with key management perscnnel

Given the operational and organisational structure of the Group, the key management personnei as defined
under IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ consists of the board of directors of the company together with the key
management personnel of DP World Limited

The Group's share of the remuneration of these key personnel was £4 8 million (2014 £3 8 million) of which £3 2
million (2014 £2 6 million) related to a share of the remuneration of the key management personne! of DP World
Limited

The remuneration of the key management personne! of DP World Limited and any relevant transactions are set
out 1n the financial statements of DP World Limited and which are publicly avalable on ther website at
www dpworld com

Other related party transactions
During the year the Group provided services including office accommodation and IT support to Istithmar P&0O
Estates an affiiated company, amounting to £0 3 million (2014 £0 8 millon)

There are no other related party transactions dunng the year, (2014 Nil)

Parent entittes

The largest group of companies for which consolidated financial statements are prepared and i which the
company 1s consolidated under DP World Limited, a company imited by shares incorporated in Dubai, whose
accounts are filed with the Duba: International Financial Centre DP World Limited has 19 55% of its shares
traded on the NASDAQ Duba

In the opinion of the directors the ultimate controlling parent undertaking as at 31 December 2015 was Port &
Free Zone World FZE, which owns 80 45% of DP World Limited Port & Free Zone World FZE 1s a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dubai World Corporation, which 1s the uttmate parent company of the Company, but which does not
exert control over the Company
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28. Business combination
2015

(i} Acquisitions of new subsidianes

On 18 August 2015, the Group has acquired 100% ownership of Maher Terminal's Fairview Container Terminal
(Fatrview) in Prince Rupert (DP World Pnnce Rupert Inc ), Bntish Columbia, Canada from Deutsche Bank for a
total consideration of £ 288 9 m (cash acquired on acquisition £ 1 3 m} The carrying value and fair value of the
identifiable assets and llabiities on the date of the acquisition were as follows

Farr value
Acquiree's
recognised on
carrying amount acquisition
£'m £'m
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 232 232
Port concession nghts - 254 5
Accounts recevables and prepayments 112 112
Inventonies 12 12
Bank balances and cash 13 13

Liabilities
Pension and post-employment benefits (08) (0 8}
Income tax liabiities {11) (11)
Deferred tax habilities {14) {67 5)
Accounts payable and accruals (6 4} (6 4)
Net assets 272 2158
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 733
Total cost of acquisition 2889
287 4

Net cash outflow on acquisition {net of cash acquired)

From the date of acquisition, Fairview has contributed a loss of £ 1 4m to the Group !f the acquisition had taken
place at the beginning of the year, the profit of the Group would have increased by £ 8 4m and revenue would
have increased by £ 41 5 m

2014

In September 2014, DPW Group acquired 57% stake in Remolcadores de Puerto y Altura, S A (REPASA), a
Spanish operator of offshore support vessels for the energy industry for £7 3 million

This acquisition has resulied in recognitton of Goodwill of £1 6m

From the date of acquisition, Remolcadores de Puerte y Altura, S A has contnbuted revenue of £3 9m and loss
of £1 1m |f the acquisiton had taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue would have been £9 9m and
loss would have been £2 9m

()  Acquisitions without change of control

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 49% of non-controlling interest in Southampton
Container Terminals Limsted for a consideration of £38 8 million, resulting i a gan of £10 5 milion which has
been recorded in equity, as there has not been any change in control
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29 Financial instruments

(a) Credit nsk
{1) Exposure to credit nsk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to
credit nisk at the reporting date was

£ milhon

Camrying amount Carrying amount

2015 2014

Trade receivables 867 77
Other recevables 1096 1039
Amounts owed by group comparnies 2,6201 26235
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 269 4 249 2
Debt secunties held-to-matunity 51 55
643 "7

Loan to equity accounted investees

The maximum exposure to credi nsk for trade recevables at the reporting date by geographical region I1s as
follows

£ mullion
2015 2014 ‘
Europe and Africa 420 379 |
Australia and Amencas 339 251 |
Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent 108 87 i
867 717 |
|
|
(n) Credit quality of financial assets and impaiment fosses
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables dunng the year was
£ milion
. 2015 2014
At 1 January 13 18
Reversed duning the year 03)
At 31 December 13 13
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was
£ millien
2015 2014
Neither past due or mpaired 515 492
Past due on the reporting date
Past due less than 30 days 232 157
Past due 31-60 days 77 |
Past due over 60 days 43 37
BET7 M7

{b) Liquidity nsk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial habilites, including estmated interest payments and
excluding the impact of netting agreements
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29 Financial instruments {continued)

(b) Liquidity nsk {continued)

2015 Oneto Two to More than
Carrying Contractual Within one two five five
amaunt cash flows yoar years yoars years
Non-denvative financial habilities
Trade and other payables {271 7) (2711 7) (251 6) {20 1) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues {54) {10 3) (0 4) {0 4) {13) 82
Secured bank loans {715 8) (993 8) {66 9) {63 1} (285 4) {578 4)
Unsecured loans and bank loans {358 7) (404 0) {39 8) {38 0) (312 3) (13 9)
Finance lease liabilities (18 3) {24 5) {62) (53) (7 6) (54)
Mortgage debenture stock (14) 27) {o1) (0 1) {01} (2 4)
Unsecured loan (77) {77 (T - - -
Financial guarantees and Letter of Credit - (106 4) - - - -
Denvative financial liabilites
Interest rate swaps (net outflow) (54 3) {105 3} (18 9) (17 4) (43 2) (25 8)
(1,4333) (1,926 4) {391 6) (144 4) {649 9) (634 1)
£ mithon
2014 One to Two to More than
Canrying Contractual Within ona two five fiva
amount cash flows year years years years
Non-dernivative financial habilities
Trade and other payabiles {253 8) {253 8) {235 9) (17 9) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues {(51) (10 2} 0 4) {04) (12) 8 2)
Secured bank loans (613 9) (768 4) (56 9) (51 0) {214 4) (446 1)
Unsecured bank loans (314 0) (353 8) (329 (39 4) {243 0) (38 5)
Finance lease liabilites (20 5) (27 6) (53) {50} {11 6) (57)
Mortgage debenture stock (14 (2 5) - - {o1) (24)
Unsecured loan stock 63 (6 3) (6 3) - - -
Financial guarantees and Letter of Credit - {97 N - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps (net outflow) (63 5) (88 7} (18 3) (15 9) (38 9) (14 6)
(1,2785) (1,609 2) {357 0) {129 6) {509 2) (515 5)
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28 Financial nstruments (continued)
{c) Market nsk
) Currency nsk

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year

Avearage rates Reporting date spot rates
2015 2014 2015 2014
usp 1528 1646 1482 1559
EUR 1377 1241 11361 1285
AUD 2035 1827 2026 1904
INR 97 996 100 464 98 092 98 247
CAD 1954 1818 2057 1807

Foreign currency sensitivity analysts

A 10 per cent strengthening of pound stering against the following currencies at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014 would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular inferest rates, remain constant Further, as each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency, the effects of translating financial assets and habilities of the

respective entity would mainly impact equity

2015

£'milhon

Conselidated statement

Consclidated statement

of OCI of income

usb 130 114
EUR 11 (0 15)
AUD {19) -
INR 81 023
CAD 19 024
2014 £'million

Equity Income Statement

usb 134 09
EUR 06 {02)
AUD (10) -
INR 22 02
CAD 43 03

A 10% per cent weakenuing of pound stering againsi the above currencies at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown

above, on the basis that all other vanables remain constant
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{c) Markel nsk (continued)

(1] Interest rate nsk

P&O Annual Report

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest beanng financial instruments was

£ rulhion
Carrying amount Carrytng amouat
2015 2014
Fixed Rate instruments
Financial assets - -
Financal habilities 619 (60 6)
Interest rate swaps hedging floating rate debt (914 7} (723 6)
(976.6) (784 2)
Variable rate instruments
Financiat assets 2,788 7 2,7122
Financial habilities {1,045 4) (900 6)
Interest rate swaps hedging floating rate debt 9147 7236
2,658 0 25352
The group has hedged its exposure to vanable rates by entenng into fixed interest rate swaps for a notional
amount equivalent to £914 70 million (2014 £723 60 million)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/{decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other varables, in
particular foreign currency exchange rates, remamn constant
£ mulhion
[ncome statement
100bp ncrease  100bp decrease  100bp increase  100bp decrease
31-Dec-15
Vanable rate mstruments 266 (26 6) - -
Interest rate swaps 01 on 91 (CB))]
Cash flow sensitvity net 26.7 (26.7) 91 o1
31-Dec-14
Variable rate mstruments 254 (254) - -
Interest rate swaps 11 Gan 72 (72)
Cash flow sensitivity net 265 (26 %) 72 (72)
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29. Financial instruments {continued)
{d) Fair value of financral assets and habiities

The table below presents the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabiities at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

£ mullion
2015 2014
Book value Fair value Book value Falr value

Primary financial assets and liabilities held or 1ssued to finance the Group's operations
Trade and other recevables 196 3 196 3 1758 1758
Trade and other payables (2717) 2717 (253 8) (253 8)
Unsecured bond 1ssues 54) (54) 51 51)
Secured bank loans {715 8) (715 8) (613 9) (613 9)
Unsecured bank loans (358 7) (358 7) (314 0) (314 O}
Finance lease habilities {18 3) (18 3) (20 5) (20 5)
Mortgage debenture stock (14 {(14) {(14) {14)
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,6201 26201 26235 2,6235
Amounts owed to group undertakings {343 6) (343 B) (61 1) {61 1)
Amounts owed by equity accounted Investees 643 643 517 517
Cash and cash equivalents 269 4 269 4 2492 2492
::‘ndalrzss::l assets held at fair value through profit 242 24 2 24 2 242
Debt secunties held-to-matunty 51 51 55 55
Dernvative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile
Interest rate swap - liabilities {54 3) (54 3) (63 5) (63 5)
Cash flow sensitivity net 1,410 2 1,410 2 1,796 6 1,796 6

The following valuation methods have been used for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

The fair value of trade and other recevables and trade and other payables approximates to the book value due to
the short term matunty of these instruments

The farr value of non-convertible bonds and doltar notes tncluded in loans above 1s based on the quoted market
price of comparable debt Other loans include term loans and finance leases These are largely at vanable
interest rates and therefore the book value normally equates to the far value

The farr value of debt secunties held-to-matunty 1s based on the quoted market value of similar assets The fair
value of other investments 1s based on the year-end quoted price for listed investments and the estimated
recoverable amount for unlisted investments The farr value of cash and bank overdrafts approximates to the
book value due to the short term matunty of the instruments The far value of denvative financial instruments is
based on the cash flows discounted to the net present value using prevaling market rates and foreign currency
rates at the reporting date
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{d) Fair value of financial assets and habiliies (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial mstruments camed at fair value, by valuation method The different levels
have been defined as follows
e Level 1 quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or hiabilities

e Level 2 nputs other than quoted pneces included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
hability, either directly (1 e as prices) or indirectly (t ¢ denved from pnces)

» level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

nputs)

£ milion

Level 1 Lovel 2 Leve! 3
2015
Financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss - - 24 2
Debt securities held-to-maturity - 51 -
Mortgage debenture stocks - (08) -
Derwvative financial labilities - (54 3) -
. (50 0) 242
2014
Fimancial assets held at fair value through profit and loss - - 24 2
Debt securities held-to-maturity - 55 -
Mortgage debenture stocks - (0 8) -
Denvative financial labiities - (63 5) -
- {58 9) 242
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30. Significant group entities

The extent of the Group’s ownership n 1ts various subsidartes, assoctates and joimnt ventures and
thesr principal activities are as follows
Percentage of

Country of equity share
incorporation  capital owned Business descniption

Subsidiaries
Chennai Container Terminal Private Lid India 100% Container terminal operattons
DP World Antwerp NV Belgium 100% Container terminal and other port
DP World Callac S A Peru 100% Contaner terminal operations
DP Wortd (Canada) Inc Canada 100% Container terminals and stevedorning
DP Waorld Austraha (POSN) Pty Ltd Australia 100% Holding Company
DP World Overseas Pty Limited Australia 100% Holding Company
DP World Mapute S A Mozambigue 60% Container terminal operations
Mundra International Container Terminal Private Limited  India 100% Contawner terminal operations
Nhava Sheva International Container Terminal Private Ltd India 100% Container termunal operations
P&O Maritime Services Pty Ltd Australia 100% Port and mantime services
P&O Martime Services (PNG) Ltd Papua New 100% Port and mantime services

Guinea
Qasim International Container Terminal Pakistan Ltd Pakistan 55% Container terminal operations
Saigon Premier Container Terminal Vietnam B80% Container termunal operations
Southampton Container Termunals Ltd England 100% Container terminal operations
Terminales Rio de la Plata SA Argentina 55 62% Container terminal operations

London Gateway Port Limited England 100% Container terminal operations
DP World Prince Rupert Inc Canada 100% Container terminal operations
Associates

Antwerp Gateway NV Belgium 60%" Container terminal operations
Laem Chabang International Terminal Co Ltd Thailand 34 5% Container termenal operations
Eurofos SARL France 50% # Container terminal operations
Generale de Manutention Portuaire S A France 50% # Container terminal operations
Qingdao Qhanwan Container Terminal Co Lid China 29% # Container terminal operations
Asian Terminals Inc Philippines M 72% Container terminal operations
Portus Indico - Sociedade de Servicos Portuanos Ltd UAE 48 5% Holding company

Joint Ventures

PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya Indonesia 49% Container terminal operations

* Although the Group has more than 60% effective ownership interest in this entity, it 18 not treated as a subsidiary, but mstead
treated as an equity accounted investee The underlying shareholder agreement does not provide significant control to the
Group

# Reflects economic Interest
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At 31 December 2015
£ million
Note 2015 2014
Non-currant assets
Tangible fixed assets E 70 73
Investments in subsidianes F 16019 1,527 4
Other 1nvestments F 238 238
1,632.7 1,558 5
Current assels
Debtors G 35085 35425
Cash and cash equivalents 22 35
36107 3,546 0
Creditors. amaunts falling due within one year
Other creditors I (546 6) {1,086 9)
(546 6) (1,0869)
Net current assets 2,964.1 2450 4
Total assets less current llabilities 4,696.8 40176
Creditors amounts falling due In more than one year
Creditors amounts falling due n more than one year | (06) -
Loans H (6 8) {6 5)
(7.4) (6 58)
Provisions for liabilties J {110 (110
Net assets hefore penslon Habilitles 4,678.4 4,000 1
Pansions and post-retirement benefils N (88 1) (95 3)
Net assets after pension liabllities 4,490.3 3,904 8
Capital and resorves
Called up share capital K (843 2) (843 2)
Share premium account L {815 4) {815 4)
Profit and loss account L (2,831 7) (2,246 2)
Total equity (4,490,3) (3,904 8}

hg accounts were approved by a duly authorised committee of th Board of directors a
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Statement of changes in equity

£ milhon
Share Share Other Retained Total

capital  premium reserve earnings Equity
Balance as at 1 January 2014 (revised) 8432 8154 - 22797 39383
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - (17 17
Total other comprehensive income, net of Income tax - - - (318} (318)
Total comprehensive income - - - (33 5) {33 5)
Transactions with owners recarded directly in equity - - - - -
-Dividends - - - - -
At 31 December 2014 8432 8154 - 22462 39048
At 1 January 2015 843 2 8154 - 2,246 2 3,904 8
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year 5920 5920
Total other comprehensive Income, net of iIncome tax (6 5) {6 5)
Total comprehensive income - - - 5855 5855
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
-Dividends - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 843 2 8154 - 28317 4,490 3
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A. Accounting Policies
The Penmsular and Onental Steam Nawvigatton Company (the ‘Company) 1 a company incorporated and
domuciled in the UK

The following accounting polctes have been apphed consistently in dealing with items which are considered
matenal in relation to the accounts of the Company except as noted below

Basis of Preparation
First ttme application of FRS 100 and FRS 101

In the current year the Company has adopted FRS 100 and FRS 101 The financial statements have been
prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with Ftnancial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced
Disclosure Framework' and the Companies Act 2006 In previous years the financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable UK accounting standards

In the transition to FRS 101, the Company has applied IFRS 1 whilst ensuring that its assets and habilities are
measured in complance with FRS 101  An explanation of how the transition to FRS 101 has affected the
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company 1s provided in note Q There
have been no matenal amendments to the disclosure requirements previously applied in accordance with
previcus UK GAAP The change in basis of preparation has enabled the Company to take advantage of all of the
avatlable disclosure exemptions permitted by FRS 101 1n the financial statements, which are summanzed below

» Cash Flow Statement and related notes,
Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned substdiaries,
Disclosures mn respect of capital management,
The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs,
Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Perscnnel, and
Disclosures of transactions with a management entty that provides key management personnel
services o the company

As the consclidated financial statements of DP World Limited (intermediate parent undertaking’) include the
equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of
certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS 7
Financia! Instrument Disclosures

Information on the impact of first-time adoption of FRS 101 1s given in note Q

The Company proposes to continue te adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 1n its next financial
statements

Under Sechon 408 of the Compamies Act 2006 the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own
profit and loss account

Going concern

The directors, having made enquines, consider that the company has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence from 12 months of the date of approval of financial statement and therefore they consider it
appropnate to adopt the going concemn basis in prepanng the accounts

Functional currency and foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company 1s sterling All financtal information presented in Sterling 1s rounded to
the nearest milion Transaction in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of
the transaction

Monetary items denominated i foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functicnal currency
at the exchange rate at that date and exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the income statement

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to the functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of imitial transaction and is not retranslated at a later date Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined

Foreign currency differences ansing on retranslation of monetary tems are recogmised in the statement of profit
or loss, except for differences ansing on the retranslation of avaitable-for-sale equity instruments, of a financial
hability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a forergn operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which
are recognised directly in statement of other comprehensive income
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A. Accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any prowision for imparment Assets
constructed by the Company are depreciated from the date that the assets are available for use

Prowvision for any impairment in value of other fixed assets 1s made in the profit and loss account

Depreciation 1s calculated to wnte off the cost of these assets to estimated restdual value, on a straight ine basis
over the expected useful Iife of the asset concemed The expected useful lves of property and other fixed assets
(reported within plant and machinery, fixtures and fithings} vary up to 40 years

The estimated useful ives of assets are as follows

Assets Useful life (years)
Buildings 5-40
Plant and Machinery 3-25
Fixtures & Fittings 3-25

Interest incurred in respect of assets under construction 1s capitalised into the cost of the asset concerned
Investment 1n subsidiaries
Investment in subsidianes are shown at cost less provision for impayrment

Other investments

Other investments n debt and equity secunties held by the Company are classified as being available-for-sale
and are stated at far value, with any resultant gan or loss beng recogmnised directly In equity, except for
impairment lasses and, in the case of monetary items such as debt securties, foreign exchange gains and
losses When these investments are derecogmsed, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity Is
recogrised in profit or loss Where these investments are interest-beanng, interest calcutated using the effective
interest method 1s recognised In profit or loss

The fair value of financial nstruments classified as available-for-sale 1s their quoted bid-price at the balance sheet
date Avallablefor-sale investments are recognised/derecogrused by the Company on the date it commuts fo
purchasefsell the investments Secunties held-to-matunty are recogrised/derecognised on the day they are
transferred to/by the Company The Company does not hold investments in debt or equity securities for trading
purposes

Trade debtors and other receivables

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any imparment Loans and receivables are financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market Subsequent to inal
recognition at fair value, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment losses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and deposits
Loans
Interest-beanng borrowings are recognised inthially at farr value less attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent to

initial recognition, interest-beanng borrowings are stated at amorlised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses
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A. Accounting policies (continued)

Creditors

Credrors are obligattons to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers Creditors are recognised initrally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method

Provisions

A provision s recognised In the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obltgation
as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and where the amount of the associated costs can be relably estmated If the effect 15 matenal,
prowisions are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects cumrent market
assessments of the time value of money, and where appropnate the nisks specific to the hability

A prowsion for onerous contracts 1s recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract

Leases

Leases where the Company retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as finance leases These leases include Land and bulldings which are financed by leasing agreements, giving
nghts approximating to ownership are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at cost less accumulated depreciation

On intal recognition, the leased assets are measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payment Subsequent to imihal recogmition, the leased asset 1s accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset Minimum lease payments made under finance
leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding labiity The finance
expense 15 allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant penodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liabilty

Leases where the Company does not retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases In operating lease, rentals payable are charged to the profit and loss account on a
systematic basis over the term of the lease

Pensions and post-retirement benefits

Defined contribution plans
A defined contnbution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan in which the company pays the fixed contnbution to
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Contributions, including
lump sum payments, in respect of defined contnbutton pension schemes and multi-employer defined benefit
schemes where it 1s not possible to identify the Company’s share of the scheme, are charged to the profit and
loss account as they fall due

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contnbution plan
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A Accounting policies {continued)

Pensions and post-retirement benefits (continued)

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans Is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current
and prior penods That benefit 1s discounted to determine the present value, and the far value of any plan
assets 1s deducted The calculation 1s performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method The discount rate 1s the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds that have matunly dates
approximating to the terms of the Company’s cbhgations

When the actuanal calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recogrused asset 1s imited to the present
value of economic benefits avallable in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contnbutions to the plan In order to calculate the present value of econormic benefits, consideration I1s given to
any minmum funding requirements that apply to any plan m the Company An economic benefit 1s available to
the Company If it 1s realisable dunng the life of the plan, or on setilement of the plan lhabilities

Where the present value of the deficit contributions exceeds the IAS 19 defiod an addiicnal hability 1s
recognised

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit lability, which comprise of actuanal gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset celling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised
directly in statement of other comprehensive income The Company determines the net interest expense
(income} on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the peniod by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual penod to the then-net defined benefit liability
(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit iability (asset) dunng the penod as result of
contnbutions and benefit payments Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 1s curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtalment is recognised iImmediately in profit or loss The Company recognise
gains and losses on the settlernent of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed for impaiment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable If any such indication
exists, the asset's recoverable amount 1s eshmated

An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its income-generating unit
exceeds Its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised In the profit and loss account

The recoverable amount of assets 1s the greater of their net realisable value and value in use In assessing value
in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the rate of return expected on an equally nsky investment For an asset
that does not generate largely independent income streams, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the
income-generating unit to which the asset belongs

For assets where the recoverable amount increases as a result of a change in econormic conditions or In the
expected use of the asset then the resultant reversal of the impairment loss should be recognised in the current
penod

An wmpamrment loss 15 reversed only to the extent that the asset's camrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determuned, net of depreciation or amortisation, If no iImpairment loss had been
recognised
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Fmancial guarantees

This 1s where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebledness of
subsidianes, joint ventures or associates The Company considers these o be insurance arrangements, and
accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability
until such time as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax i1s recogmised in the profit and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive ncome,
in which case it 1s recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to {ax payable in respect of
previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences
are not provided for the wutial recognition of assets or habilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidianes to the extent that
they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable fulure The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the
expected manner of realisation or seftlement of the carrying amount of assets and iabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmised only o the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avatlable
against which the temporary difference can be utiised

B. Audit fees

The Company's audit fee paid to its pnncipal auditors, KPMG LLP was £30,000 (2014 £30,000), and non-audit
fee was £131,792 (2014 £100,000)

C. Dividends

On 31 March 2016, the Company declared a dividend of £1,000,000,000 (2014 £nil) This has not been
recogrised as a hability in 2015

D. Profit for the financial year

The profit for the financial year, being the profit on ordinary activities after taxation, was £592 0 milion (2014 loss
of £1 7 rmullion)
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E. Tangible fixed assets

P&O Annual Report

£ miflion £ milion £ million £ milion £ milhon
Land and Piant and Fixture & Under Total
Fithings
Bwilding machinery, construction
Cost
At 1 January 2015 57 05 26 - 88
Additions - 00 01 02 03
At 31 December 2015 57 05 27 02 91
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 02 02) (N - (1 5)
Charge for the year 02) {0 1) {0 3) - (0 8)
At 31 December 2015 {04) {03) {14) 21)
Net book amount at 31 December 2015 53 02 13 02 70
Net book amount at 31 December 2014 55 03 15 _ 73
F. Investments
Investments Investments Total
In subsichary In uniisted
companies companies
At beginning of year 22725 238 2,296 3
Additions / (increases) 957 - 957
At 31 Decemnber 2015 2,368 2 238 2,3920
Provisions
At beginming of year (745 1) - (745 1)
Charge for the year (21 2) - (212)
At 31 December 2015 {766 3) - {766 3)
Net Investment at 31 December 2015 1,6019 238 1,6257
Net Investment at 31 December 2014 1,527 4 2318 1,8512

Additions to investment i subsidiary companies during the year relates to acquisition of 100% stake in Maher
Terminal's Farview through P&0 Dover (Holding Ltd) of £56 9 million and acquisition of remaining 49% of non-
controlling interest in Southampton Container Terminals Limited for a consideration of £38 8 mullion

Provisions dunng the year represents addiional impairment of investment in P&0 Property Intemational Ltd on

account of reduction in carrying value of the company as at 31 December 2015
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F. Investments (continue)

The following are subsidiary undertakings of the Company

Subsidiary undertakings Country of Percentage of Class of shares
incorporation share capital
owned by the
Company
Beaufort Insurance Company Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares and Preference
shares
Bntish India Steam Nawvigatiton Company Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
DP World (POSN) B V Netherlands 94 00% Ordinary-B shares
DP World Australia (POSN) Pty Ltd Australia 100 00% Ordinary shares
DP World Investments FZE United Arab 100 00% Ordinary shares
Emirates
DP World Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
OP World Mantime B vV Netherlands 94 00% Ordinary-B shares
DP World Red B v Netherlands 100 00% Ordinary shares
Linfire Limited United Kingdom 100 0% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Limited United Kingdom 100 Q0% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Park Development Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Park Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Park Management Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
Londen Gateway Port Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
Londen Gateway Services Limited United Kihngdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&0O Bulk Shipping Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&0O Delaware Holdings LLC United States 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&0 Dover (Holdings) Limited Umited Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&Q Pension Funds Investments Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordmary shares
P&O Ports Lid United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&0O Properties International Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&0O Scottish Fernes Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
P&O Tankships Investments Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
Partkestrel Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
POETS Fieet Management Limited United Kingdom 100 00% Ordinary shares
Southampton Container Temunals Limited United Kingdom 49 00% A shares

Investments in unlisted companies

The investment n unlisted companies represents a 3 15% ownership holding of DP World Australia (Holding) Pty
Ltd Investment in unlisted companies are classified as being available-for-sale The unlisted investment s
measured at cost instead of fair value as the investment do not have a quoted market pnce in an active market
and for which a fair value cannot be reliably measured

86




P&O Annual Report

Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

F. Investments (continue)

The following subsidianes have elected the audit exemption (section 479A of the Companies Act 2006) where the
parent company (The Peninsular and Onental Steam Nawigation Company ZCO00073) has provided a guarantee
as at the date of signing these financial statements for all habilities owing by the respective entities for the year
ended 31 December 2015

Company

Registered
number
Abbott & Goldman 0094899
Bntish India Steam Navigation Company Limited 0000133
DP World Limited 6291123
European Fernes Limited 00301725
P&C Bulk Shipping Limited 00258949
P&0O Dover (Holdings) Limited 03492579
P&O Overseas Holdings Limited 00537728
P&O Ports Linited 00751061
P&Q Properties International Limited 01099229
P&O Scottish Fernes Limited 00071375
P&0 Scottish Fermes Ship Management Limited SC10350
P&O Tankships Investments Limited 21695
Partkestrel Limuted 01824258
Poets Fleet Management Limited 161443
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G. Debtors

£ million

2015 Falling due
within one year

2014 Falltng due
within one year

Trade Debtors 28 19
Other recevables 61 76
Prepayments and accrued income 48 131
Corporation tax - 34
Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,494 8 3,516 8
3,508 5 3,5425
H. Loans
2018 2014
Creditors falling due more than one year
US dollar bonds 2027 (unsecured) 54 51
Mortgage debentures stocks 14 14
68 65
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Currency Nominal Year of Face  Carrying Face Carrying
mterest maturity value  amount value amount
rate
2015 2014 2014
US dollar bonds 2027 (unsecured) usD 79 2027 54 51
Mortgage debentures stocks GBP 35 Undated 14
68
[. Creditors
£ milion
2015 Falling due 2014 Falling due
in more n mare
than one than one
within one year year Total within one year year Total
Amounts owed to subsidianes 5348 - 534 8 10735 - 1,0735
Social security and other
taxation 39 - 38 11 - 11
Other unsecured creditors 38 - g 75 - 75
Accruals and deferred income 40 06 47 48 - 438
546 5 06 547 2 1,086 9 - 1,086 9
5465 06 547 2 1,086 9 - 1,086 9
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£ milbion

Other

Provisions

At 1 January 2015 110
At 31 December 2015 10

Provisions include £8 3 million (2014 £8 3 million) in respect of exposures anising from former employees
working in environments that used to contain asbestos Liabiliies expected to be incurred are in part covered by

insurance Any expected recovenes are included within other receivables

Amounts released to the Income statement during the year were in respect of interest recevable on the loan to

an associate which was wntten off in the penod

K. Share capital

The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital 1s as follows

£ milion
2015 2014
Issued share capital (843 2 milion ordinary shares of £1 each} 843 2 8432
L. Reserves
£ milkton
Share Profit and Total
premium loss
account account
At 1 January 2015 815 4 2,246 2 3,0616
Actuarial gains - (6 5) (6 5)
Profit for the financial year - 592 0 5920
At 31 December 2015 8154 2,831 7 3,6471

Share capital and share premium account

The balances classified as share capital and share premium account include the total net proceeds on issue of

the Company's equity share capital (see note K)
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Profit and foss account
Exchange mavements in the profit and loss account include a gan of £23 8 mifhon (2014 £25 8 million gan) in
respect of foreign currency net lendings

M. Directors’ emoluments

£ thousand

2015 2014

Directors’ emoluments 1,510 1,500
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 86 64
1,596 1,564

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under

2m5 2014

Defined benefit schemes - -
Money purchase schemes 1 1

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £1,140,147 and no pension contnbuticn was made
on his behalf (2014 The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £484 000 and no pension
contnbution was made on his behaif)

In 2015 £492,147 (2014 £330,000) was paid to directors in respective of a long term incentive plan
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N. Pensions

The Company participates in three funded UK defined benefit pension schemes and a Company Personal
Pension arrangement The pnncipal scheme, the P&0O Pension Scheme (the “P&0 UK Scheme™, was closed to
routine new members on 1 January 2002 The pension fund s legally separaled from the Company and
managed by a Trustee Board The assets of the scheme are managed on behalf of the Trustee by independent
fund managers

The Company also participates in the Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund {the “MNOPF Scheme”) and the
Merchant Navy Ratings’ Pension Fund (the “MNRPF scheme”) which are industry wide schemes These
generally have assets held in separate trustee administered funds which are legally separaled from the
Company

The board of a pension fund in the UK 1s required by law to act in the best interests of the fund participants and 15
responsible for seting certain policies (e g investment, contributions and indexation pohcies) and determining
recovery plans if appropnate These defined benefit funds expose the Company to actuanal nsks, such as
longewvity nsk, currency nsk, interest rate nisk and market (investment} risk In addition, by partiipating in certain
mult-employer industry schemes the Company can be exposed to a pro-rata share of the credit nsk of other
participating employers

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

2015 2014
Present value of obligations (1,444 5) (1,508 0}
Fair value of plan assets 1,356 4 1,4107
Net hiability deficit {88 1) {95 3)

Related deferred tax asset -

Net liabikty {88 1} (95 3)
Amounts in the balance sheet

Non-current Liabilities {88 1) (95 3)
Net habtlty (88 1) (95 3)

The deferred pension benefit schemes of GBP £88 1 million (2014 £95 3 mullion) 1s In respect of the 1otal
Company schemes shown on page 94

The re-measurements of the net defined benefit hability recogmsed in the statement of other comprehensive
income 1s as follows

2018 2014

Actuanal {gain)/loss recognised in the year (45 1) 102 2
Return on plan assets lesser/ (greater) than the discount rate 394 {91 3)
Change n share in mult-employer scheme (0 6) 172
Movement in minimum funding hability 128 37
65 8
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The pension costs for defined benefit schemes are as follows

20156 2014
Current service cost (0 3) (@3)
Gain due to settlements/curtailments 06 -
Administration costs {2 5} (16)
Total charge to operating profit {22} (19)
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) (30) (2 7)
Total expenses recognised in the income statement (52) (46)

Actuanal valuations and assumptions

The latest valuations of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to 31 December 2015 by qualified
independent actuanes The principal assumptions are in¢luded 1in the table below

The assumptions used by the actuaries are the best estmates chosen from a range of possible actuanal
assumptions, which, due to the timescale covered, may not necessanly be horne out in practice There are
ongoing discussions with Trustees in regards to deficit recovery plans

P&0 UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme MNRPF Scheme
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rates 3 70% 3 60% 370% 360% 370% 360%
Discount rates - Bulk Annuity Asset 3 50% 335% nfa nfa nfa nia
Expected rates of salary increases nfa 2 50% nfa n/a n/a n/a
Pension increases
- Deferment 280% 2 80% 2 20% 215% 2 20% 215%
- Payment 2 80% 280% 310% 305% 310% 305%
- payment Bulk Annuity 275% 275% n/a nfa nl/a n/a
Infiation 320% 315% 3 20% 315% 320% 315%
Inflation - Bulk Annuity Asset 310% 310% n/a nia n/a nfa
Expected rates of return on scheme assets nia nia nla nfa nla nfa

From 1 December 2011, changes have been made to the benefits provided by the P&0 UK scheme These
inciude a restriction to pay increases equal to the lower of Retall Price Index and 2 5% i a Scheme Year This
restnction 1s reflected in the pay increase assumption above and there 1s no allowance for promotional
increases The P&0 UK Scheme was closed to future accrual on 31 December 2015, so future pay increases
will no longer be relevant after this date

The assumptions for pensioner longevity under both the P&O UK scheme and the MNOPF scheme are based
on an analysis of pensioner death trends under the respective schemes over many years

The schemes’ strategic asset allocations across the sectors of the main asset classes are
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P&Q UK Scheme MNOPF Scheme MNRPF Schemes Total Fair value
£'million £'rmillion £'milllon £'million

2015
Equities 3026 404 55 3485
Bonds 1191 694 204 208 9
Other 205 - 102 307
Value of insured pensioner lability 7683 - - 768 3
1,2105 10938 361 1,356 4

2014
Equities 375 361 54 3590
Bonds 162 66 5 201 2028
Other 193 - 78 271
Value of insured pensioner hability 8218 - - 8218
1,2748 1026 333 14107

With the exception of the insured penstoner liability all matenal investments have quoted prices in achve
markets

For illustration, the life expectancies for the two schemes at age 65 now and in the future are detaled in the
table below

Male Female
Age 65 now Age 65 in 20 years' time Age 65 now ‘:Saers?tsm':: 20

2015

P&C UK scheme 234 265 258 289
MNRPF scheme 207 233 261 288
MNOPF scheme 227 256 263 293
2014

P&0O UK scheme 233 263 256 287
MNRPF scheme 213 240 241 267
MNOPF scheme 226 254 262 292

At 31 December 2015 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obhigation was 15 8 years (2014 16
years)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant (in
practice, this 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be comrelated), would have
increased the net defined benefit hability as at 31 December 2015 by the amounts shown below

£ milien
0 1% reduction in discount rate 90
0 1% increase in inflation assumption and related assumptions 37
0 25% p a increase m the long term rate of mortality improvement 58

The methads and type of assumptions used in preparing sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous penod
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At 31 December 2015 the werghted average duraton of the defined benefit obhgathon was 15 8 years (2014 16
years)

Reconcihation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of scheme
assets for the penod ended 31 December 2015

£ million

P&0Q UK Scheme  MNOPF Scheme sh:l: ::::: Total

Present value of obligation at 1 January 2015 (1,328 6) (117 6) {53 5) (1,499 7)
Current service cost (03) - - (03)
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (46 6) (38) {19) (523)
Past service cost - amendments/curtailments (02) - - (02}
Settlement of habilities 80 - - 90
Actual employee contnbutions - - - -
Actuarnial gain/(loss) - expenience 233 40 {(15) 258
Actuana! gan/(loss} - demographic assumptions - - 08 08
Actuanal gain/(loss) - financial assumptions 166 12 07 185
Garmn/{Loss) due to change in share - - 24 24
Actual benefit paid 640 49 19 708
Present value of obhgation at 31 December 2015 (1,262 8} (111 3) (511 {1,425 2)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2015 1,274 9 1026 332 14107
Interest mcome on assets 44 8 34 13 455
Return on plan assets {greater)/less than the discount rate 43 7) 31 1.1 (39 5)
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than the discount rate - - - -
Actual employer contnbutions 86 57 4.5 188
Actual employee contnbutions - - - -
Actual benefit paw ’ (64 0) 47 {19) (70 6}
Gain/(Loss) due te change in share - - {18) (18)
Settlement {8 4} - - (8 4)
Admiristration costs incurred during penod 17 (0 3) (0 3) (23)
i‘:"o‘:!::‘;f:;g:;"e assets at 1,2105 1098 361 1,356 4
Irrecoverable surplus at 1 January 2015 - (63) - (63)
Interest cost on rrecoverable surplus - (02) . {02
Change in rrecoverable surplus - (80) {4 8) (12 8)
Irrecoverable surplus at 31 December 2015 - {14 5) (48) (193
g::isned benefit schemes net habilities at 31 December (52 3) (16 0) (19 8) (88 1)
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Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of scheme

assets for the penod ended 31 December 2014

£ million

P&O UK Scheme  MNOPF Scheme  har'' Total
Present value of obligation at 1 January 2014 (1,251 2) (94 0) (210) (1,366 2)
Current service cost {03) - - (0 3)
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (530) 40 {09) (57 9)
Past service cost - amendments/curtaliliments - - - -
Settlement of habilihes - - - -
Actual employee contrbutions - - - -
Actuanal gain/{loss) - expenence 85 01 02 88
Actuanal gain/(loss} - demographic assumplions (18) - - (18)
Actuanal gain/(loss) - financial assumptions (97 5) (9 3) (24) {109 2)
Gain/(Loss) due to change in share - (14 6) (30 5) {45 1)
Actual benefit paid 667 42 11 720
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2014 (1,328 6) (117 6) (53 5} (1,499 7)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2014 1,206 7 758 151 12976
Interest income on assets 512 33 07 552
Return on plan assets {greater)/less than the discount rate 762 132 20 914
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than the discount rate - - - -
Actual employer contnbutions 86 34 - 120
Actual employee contributions - - - -
Actual benefit pad 66 7) (40} (1 (71 8)
Gan/(Loss) due to change tn share - 111 168 279
Settlement - - - -
Administration costs incurred durning penod 12) {02) (02) (16)
F;"D":c':;z'ef;:‘:;“e assets at 12748 1026 333 1,4107
Irrecoverable surplus at 1 January 2014 - (25) - {2 5)
Interest cost on wrecoverable surplus - (01) - on
Change in irrecoverable surplus - 37 - (a7
Irrecoverable surplus at 31 December 2014 - (6 3} - 63)
Defined benefit schemes net habilites at 31 December (53 8) 213) 202) (95 3)

2014
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Where a surplus anses on a scheme, In accordance with I1AS19 and IFRIC14, the surplus I1s recogrised as an
asset only if it represents an unconditional economic benefit available to the Company in future Any surplus In
excess of this benefit 1s not recognised in the statement of financial position A mimimum funding hability anses
where the statutory funding requirements are such that future contributions in respect of past service will result n a
future unrecognisable surplus

The below table shows the movement in mimmum funding habilty -

£ millien

2015 2014

Minimum funding hability as on 1 January (63) (2 5)
Interest cost on minimum funding hiability (02) 01
Actuanal movement dunng the year {128) 37N
Effect of movement in exchange rates -
Minimum funding liability as on 31 December (183 (63)

It 1s anticipated that the company will make the following contributions to the pension schemes in 2016
£ mdlion
P&0O UK Scheme MNOPF MNRPF Total
Scheme Scheme

Pension scheme contnbutions 84 33 15 132

P&O UK Scheme

Formal actuanal valuations of the P&0O UK Scheme are normatly carned out tnenmally by qualfied independent
actuanes, the latest completed regular valuation report for the scheme being at 31 March 2013, using the
projected umt credit method

In December 2007, as part of a process developed with the Company to de-risk the pension scheme, the Trustee
transferred £800 mihon of P&O UK Scheme assets to Patemoster (UK) Lid, in exchange for a bulk annuity
mnsurance policy to ensure that the assets {in the Company balance sheet and in the Scheme) will always be
equal to the current vatue of the liability of the pensions in payment at 30 June 2007, thus removing the funding
nsks for these liabilities
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Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund

The MNOPF Scheme is an industry wide mult-employer defined benefit scheme in which officers employed by
the Company have participated

The scheme was divided into two sections, the Old Section and the New Section, both of which are closed to new
members The old section has been closed to benefit accrual since 1978

The Old Section has been closed to benefit accrual since 1978 The Old Scheme completed a buy-out of all its
members benefit obligations in July 2014, following which the Old Section was wound up Therefore, no further
liabilities were assigned to the Company in respect of the Old Scheme The Company could not identify its share
of the underlying assets and habilites of the Old Section on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore
accounted for contnbutions and payrments to the Old Section under IAS19 as If it were a defined contnbution
scheme unti! the scheme was wound up dunng the year

The most recent formal actuanal valuation of the New Section was carried out as at 31 March 2015 Thus resulted
in a defict of £2 1 millon The Trustee Board believe therr investment strategy will address this deficit and
therefore has not 1ssued deficit contrbution notices to employers in respect of the 2015 actuanal valuation

Following the valuation the Trustee and Employers have agreed contributions, in addition to those ansing from
the 31 March 2003, 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2009 valuatons, which will be paid to the Secton by
participating employers over the period to 30 September 2023 These contnbutions include an aliowance for the
impact of irrecoverable contributions n respect of companies no longer In existence or not able to pay ther
share The Company's aggregated outstanding contnibutions from these valuations are payable as follows 2016
£2 7 millen, 2017 to 2020 £5 3 million thousand per annum and 2021 to 2023 £0 8 milhon per annum

The Trustees set the payment terms for each participating employer n accordance with the Trustee's
Contribution Collection Policy which includes credit vetting

The Company's share of the net deficit of the New Section at 31 December 2015 is estmated at 5 33%

Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund

The Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (“the MNRPF Scheme’) 1s an industry wide multi-employer defined
benefit pension scheme in which sea staff employed by companies within the Company have parhicipated The
scheme has a significant funding deficit and has been closed to further benefit accrual

The most recent formal actuanal valuation was carned out as al 31 March 2014 The Company's deficit
contnbutions ansing from this valuation totalled £25 3 million {equating to 7 3% share of the net deficit) Deficit
contnbutions of £5 0 million were paid into the Scheme in 2015 Negohations are ongoing for a repayment penod
for the remaining £13 0 million deficit (on which 6% per annum interest will be charged)

The Company, which 1s no longer a current employer n the MNRPF, had settled ts statutory debt obhgation and
was not considered to have any legal obligation with respect to the on-going defiat in the fund However,
following a legal challenge, by Stena Line Limited, the High Court decided that the Trustees could require all
employers that had ever participated Iin the scheme to make contributions to fund the defiet  Although the
Company appealed the decision, it was not overturned
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N. Commitments

The commitment duning the following year in respect of non-cancellable operating leases is as follows

£ million

Land and buildings
Lease exptnng 2015 2014
Within one year 11 08
Between one and five years 43 32
Qver five years 54 44
108 84

0. Contingent liabilities

The company has a contingent rability in respect of payment guarantees amounting to £9 6 million (2014 £17
mitlion)

P. Controlling party
Ultimate holding company

In the opimion of the directors the ultimate controliing parent undertaking as at 31 December 2015 was Port &
Free Zone World FZE, which owns 80 45% of DP World Limited Port & Free Zone World FZE 15 a wholly
owned subsidiary of Dubar World Corporation, which 1s the ultimate parent company of the Company, but which
does not exert control over the Company

The largest Company of companies for which consolidated financial statements are prepared and in which the
company 1s consohdated 1s DP World Limited DP Woerld Limited 1s the intermediate holding company DP World
Limited has 19 55% of its shares traded on the NASDAQ Duban  DP World Limited was further admitted to trade
on the London Stock Exchange with effect from 1 June 2011 and voluntanly delisted from the London Stock
Exchange on 21 January 2015

Q. Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP

As stated in note A, these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS 101
The accounting policies set out in note A have been applied in prepanng the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and in the preparation of an opening FRS 101 balance sheet at 1 December 2014 In
prepanng its FRS 101 balance sheet, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previcusly in financial
statements prepared in accordance with its old basis of accounting (UK GAAP) An explanation of how the
transition from UK GAAP to FRS 101 has affected the Company's financial position 1s set out in the following
tables and the notes that accompany the tables
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Q. Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP {continued)
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£ miion
01-Jan-14 31-Dec-14
Reclassification Effoct of Reclassification Effect of
UK of Inter UK of Inter transition
GAAP Company :;a:;iéuon FRS 101 GAAP Company to FRS FRS 101
debtor debtor 101
101
Non-current assets
Tangible fixed assets 17 - - 17 73 - - 73
Investments In
subsidianes 2,589 0 (568 8) - 2,020 2 210086 (573 2) - 1,527 4
Other investment 238 - - 238 238 - - 238
26145 {568 8) - 20457 2137 (573 2) - 1,568 5
Current assets
Trade and other
recevables 257 - - 257 257 - - 257
Loans to group } i
undertakings 18158 568 8 2,384 7 29436 5732 35168
Cash and cash
equivalents 18 ) ) 18 35 ) ) 35
18434 568 8 - 24122 29728 5732 - 3,546 0
Creditors amounts
fathng due within one
year
Other creditors (17 1) - - (17 1) | {1,086 9} - - (1,086 9)
(17 1) - - (17 1) | (1,086 9) - - {1,086 9)
Net current assets 1,826 3 568 8 - 2,3951 1,8859 5732 - 2,459 1
Total assets less
current habilities 4,440 8 - - 4,4408 | 4,0176 - - 40176
Creditors amounts
falling due 1n more
than one year
Loans {6 2) - - 62) (6 5) - - {6 5)
QOther creditors,
including taxation and {406 7) - - (406 7) - - - -
social securnty
(412 9) - - (#129) {6 5} - - 65)
Provisions for habiites (18 8) - - (18 8) (110} - - (11 0)
Net assets before
pension liabilities 4,009 1 - - 4,0091 4,000 1 - - 4,0001
Pensions and post-
retirement benefits (98 6) - 279 (707y | (12286) - 273 (95 3)
Net assets after
pension habilities 39105 - 279 39384 38775 - 273 3,9048
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital {843 2) - - (843 2) {843 2) - - (843 2}
Share premium . ) : }
account {8154) 8154) | (8154) (815 4)
Profit and loss account | {2,251 9} - (279) (2,2798) | {2,218 9} - (27 3) (2,246 2)
Total equity (3,910 5) - (27 9) (3,9384) | (3,877 5) - {27 3) (3,904 8)
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Q. Explanation of transition to FRS 101 from old UK GAAP (continued)

Note 1 As of transition date, pension and post-retirement benefits are measured in complhiance with FRS 101,
which resulted into decrease in pension habiibes by £27 9 million with a corresponding impact to retained
earnings

Note 2 The transition o FRS 101 resulted i a reduction of pension habilty in comparative penod with a
corresponding impact to increase 1n administrative costs by £1 6 million, net finance costs by £4 6 million, and
credit to retained earnings by £33 5 million

Note 3 There has been a prior year adjustment to reclassify a loan to group undertakings of £573 2 million at

31st December 2014 (£568 8 million at 1st January 2014) from long term to short term as the loan 1s payable on
demand

R. Related undertakings

In accordance with section 409 of the companies Act 2006, a full list of related undertakings, the country of
incorporation and percentage of share capital owned by the Group as at 31 December 2015 1s disclosed below

Name Country of Percentage of share Class of shares
incorporation capital owned by the
Group

Abbott & Goldman United Kingdom 99% Ordinary shares
Aberlour Holding Company, Inc Phhppines 16% Preferred shares
Anderson Hughes Pty Ltd Australia 94% Ordinary shares
Antwerp Depot NV Belgium 65% Category A shares
Antwerp Gateway NV Belgum 60% Category N shares and P shares
Ascot SAS France 25% Ordinary shares
Asian Termenals, Inc Philippines 41 72% Common shares
ATI Batangas, Inc Philippines 41 72% Common shares
ATI Holdings, Inc Philippines 100% Common shares
AWH Pty Ltd Australia 157% Ordinary shares
Basswick Pty Limited Australia 100% Qrdinary shares
Beaufort Insurance Company Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares and Cumulative

Preference shares
Bengal Port Private Limited India 44 50% Ordinary Equity shares
British India Steam Navigation Company Limited  United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
Carpentana Shipping Services Pty Ltd Austraha 47 00% Ordinary-A shares
Charlwood Alltance Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% ordinary shares
Chennai Container Termenal Pvt Lid India 100% Qrdinary shares
Community Network Services Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary shares
Container Rail Road Services Pvt Ltd India 100% Ordinary Equity shares
Daven Holdings, Inc Philippines 16% Preferred shares
DP World (Canada) Inc Canada 100% Ordinary shares
DP World (Fremantle) Limited Australia 315% Class A and class B Ordinary shares
DP World (POSN)B V Netherlands 100% Ordinary-B shares
DP World (SA) Pty Ltd Australia 315% Ordinary shares
DP Weorld Antwerp Container Services NV Belgium 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Antwerp Customs Desk NV Belgum 50% Ordinary shares
DP World Antwerp Holding N V Belgium 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Antwerp Terminals NV Belgium 100% Ordinary shares
DP World ANZ Ports (Austraha) Pty Limited Austraha 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Austraha (Finance) Pty Ltd Australia 315% Ordinary shares
DP World Austraha (Holding) Pty Ltd Austraha 3 15% Ordinary shares
DP World Australa (Investments) Pty Ltd Australta 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Australia (POAL} Pty Ltd Australia 100% Class A, Class B and class B Ordmary

shares
DP World Australia (POSN) Pty Ltd Australia 100% Ordinary shares
DP World Australia Lirnited Austraha 315% Ordinary shares
DP World Blue B V Netherlands 100% ordinary shares
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

DP World Bnshane Pty Limited
DP World Canada 8 V

DP World Germersheim B V
DP World Investments FZE

DP World Liege NV

DP Werld Limited

DP World Maputo, SA

DP World Mantime B V

DP World Melbourne Limited

DP World Overseas Pty Limited

DP World Prince Rupert Inc

DP World Properties {Australa) Pty Limited
DP World Pvt Ltd

DP World Red B V

DP World Saigon Holdings Limited

DP World Sokhna FZE

DP World Sydney Limited

Eastern Gateway Temunals Private Limited
Eurofos SARL

Europe Atlantique Termmal SA

Eurcpean Fernes Limited

Expert Terminal Services Limited

Fricue Pty Limited

Fntex Pty Limited

Gamac GIE

Generale De Manutention Portuaire

Global Container Services NV

Griltsen One Limited

Harbourside Holdings Corporation
Havenbedryf Antverpia NV

Hindustan Ports Private Limited

Jeletrans SAS

Laem Chabang International Terminal Co Ltd
Laem Chabang Secunty Service Co Ltd
Latng Investments Inc

Laing Management Company

Leonora Investment Company (Central) Limited

Liena Pty Limited

Linfire Limited

London Gateway Limited

London Gateway Park Development Limited
London Gateway Park Limited

London Gateway Park Management Limited
Londen Gateway Port Holdings Limited
London Gateway Port Limited

London Gateway Port Rallway Limited
London Gateway Services Limited

Country of
incorporation

Austraha
Netherlands
Nethertands
United Arab
Emirates
Belgium

United Kingdom
Mczambique
Netherlands
Australia
Austraha
Canada
Austraha

india
Netherlands
Virgin Islands,
Bntish

United Arab
Emirates
Australia

India

France

France

United Kingdom
Cyprus
Australia
Australia
France

France

Belgium

United Kingdom
Philippines
Belgium

India

France
Thailland
Thailand

United States
United States
United Kingdom
Australia

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kimgdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urnited Kingdom
United Kingdom
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Percentage of share
capital owned by the

Group

315%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
60%
100%
3 15%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

315%
68 80%
50%
32 49%
100%
50%
100%
100%
50%
50%
100%
100%
16%
98 73%
100%
50%
34 50%
34 50%
50%
50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Class of shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Class A, Class B and class B Ordinary

shares

Ordinary shares shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary-B shares

Ordinary shares

Class A Ordinary shares

Common shares
Ordinary shares

QOrdinary Equity shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary Equity shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordmary shares
Ordinary shares
Preferred shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Orcinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Common shares
Commen shares
QOrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Louis Walfe and Sons (Vancouver) Ltd
Mackinnon Mackenzie & Co of Pakistan (Private)
Limited

Manutention Générale Méditeranéenne SA
Manutention Terminal Nord

Matthews Holdings Limited

Morray Holdings, Inc

Mundra International Container Terminal Private
Limited

Navique — Empresa Mogambrcana de
Navegagdo, SARL

Network Financing B V

Nhava Sheva (India) Gateway Terminal Private
Limited

Nhava Sheva Intemational Contamner Termmunal
Pvt Lid

P & O Mantime Services (South Africa)
(Proprietary) Limited

P8O Bulk Shipping Limited

P&O Contamners Pakistan (Private) Limited
P&Q Delaware Holdings LLC

P&0 Dover (Holdings} Limited

P&O France SA S

P&0O Garden City Investments BV

P&0 Management Services Philippines Inc
P&0 Mantime Holdings (Austraha} Pty Limited
P&O Martime Holdings Paraguay S A

P&0 Mantime Mozambique SA

P&O Maritime Ocean Sciences Limited

P&O Martime Services {(France) SARL

P&O Mantime Services (Irefand) Ltd

P&0 Martime Services (NZ) Limited (being
wound up)

P&0 Martime Services (PNG) Limited

P&O Marntime Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd
P&0 Martime Services (UK} Limited

P&0O Martime Services Paraguay S A

P&O Marntime Services Pty Ltd

P&0O Netherlands B V

P&0O Overseas Holdings Limited

P&0 Pension Funds Investments Limited
P&O Ports (Chennai) Ltd

P&0O Ports {Kulp) Pvt Ltd

P&0O Ports (Mundra) Pvt Ltd

P&0O Ports Ltd

P&0 Properties Internatienal Limited

P&0 Scottish Ferries Limited

P&0 Scottish Fernes Ship Management Limited
P&O Tankships Investments Limited

P&O Trans Austraha Holdings Limited
Pacity Investments Pty Limited

Parktex Development, Inc

Parkway Investments Partners, LP
Parkway Limited Investments, Inc

Country of
incorporation

Canada
Palkistan

France
France
Bermuda
Philippines
India

Mozambique

Netherlands
India

india
South Africa

United Kingdom
Pakistan

United States
United Kingdom
France
Netherlands
Philippines
Austraha
Paraguay
Mozambigue
United Kingdom
France

Ireland

New Zealand

Papua New
Guinea
Singapore
United Kingdom
Paraguay
Australia
Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Mauntius
Mauntus
Mauntius
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Austrzha
Australia

United States
United States
United States
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capital owned by the

Group

100%
100%

50%
50%
100%
16%
100%

33 95%

10%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
40%
100%
100%
094%
50%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
90%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Class of shares

Class A Common shares
Ordinary shares

QOrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Common shares
Preferred shares
Ordinary Equity shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Commeon shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary-A shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Crdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Partkestre! Limited

Pecard Group Holdings, Inc
Philippine Seaport, Inc

POETS Fleet Management Limited
Portsynergy Projects SA
Portsynergy SAS

Portus Indico - Sociedade de Servicos Portuarios
Limited

POTA Properties Pty Ltd

PT Terminal Petikemas Surabaya
PTS Holdings Limited

Qasim International Container Terminal Pakistan
Limuted

Qingdao New Chanwan Container Termuinal Co
Ltd

Qingdao Qianwan Contamer Terminal Co , Ltd
Qingdao Quanwan Intelligent Container Terminal
Co, Ltd

Qingdac Qianwan United Advance Container
Termminal Co , Ltd

Qingdac Qianwan United Container Termimal
Co, Ltd

Remolcadores de Puerto y Altura, S A

Saigon Premier Container Terminal

Satellite Telemetry (Aust) P/L

SCT Nominees Limited

SCT Pension Trustees Limited

SG Holdings, Inc

Sociedade de Desenvolvimento do Porto de
Maputo, S A

Societe D'Amenagement De L'interface Terrestre
Du Port Du Havre SAS

Solent Container Services Limited

South Asia Logistics Pt Ltd

South Asia Ports Limited

South Cotabate Integrated Port Services, Inc
Southampton Container Terminals Limited
Technologicky Park Bmp a s

Terminal de Cabotagem de Maputo SARL
Terminales Rio de la Plata S A

UK EDI Limited

Uninoble S A

Ventress Investments Pty Limited

Vipport

Waughcal Pty Limited

Welbeck Navigation Inc

1-Stop Connections Pty Ltd

Country of
incorporation

United Kingdom
Philtppines
Philippines
United Kingdom
France

France

Umited Arab
Emirates
Australha
Indonesia
Mauntius

Pakistan
China

China
China

China
China

Spain

Vietnam
Austraha

Urited Kingdom
Umted Kingdom
Philippines
Mozambique

France

United Kingdom
Maurntius
Mauritius
Philippines
United Kingdom
Czech Republic
Mozambique
Argentina
United Kingdom
Paraguay
Australa
Belgium
Australia
Panama
Australia
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Percentage of share
capital owned by the

Group
100%
16%
39 80%
100%
50%
50%
48 50%

100%
49%
59 22%

55%

23 20%

29%
16 24%

812%

11 60%

57%
80%
100%
100%
100%
16%
24 74%

17 5%

100%
100%
100%
14 89%
100%
50%
17 31%
55 62%
100%
42 3%
100%
100%
100%
100%
157%
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Class of shares

Ordinary shares
Class B Common shares
Common shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Crdinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary (Series B} shares

Qrdinary shares and redeemable "A"
Ordinary shares

Ocdinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Preferred shares
C Class shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Common shares
A shares

Crdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Crdwnary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares




